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Key figures (IFRS)

Munich Re Group

Q1 2008 Qal 2po7 Change

%

Gross premiums written €m 9,844 10,020 -1.8

Investment result €m 1,687 3.161 -46.6

Operating result €m 1,151 1.313 -12.3

Taxes on income €m 280 269 4.1

Consolidated resuit €m 785 974 -19.4

Thereof attributable to mingrity interests €m 10 16 -375

Earnings per share € 379 4.32 -12.3

Combined ratio
Reinsurance property-casualty % 103.8 101.8
Primary insurance property-casualty % 89.0 102.1
' Adjusted pursuant to |AS 8.

31.3.2008 31.12.2007 Change

%

Investments €m 170,159 176,154 -34

Equity €m 23,757 25,458 ~-6.7

MNet techrical provisions €m 150,545 152,436 -1.2

Staff 39,279 38,634 1.7

Share price € 123.88 132.94 6.8

Munich Re's market capitalisation €bn e 29.0 -6.8
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Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman of Munich Re's
Board of Management

To our shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

We have closed the first quarter of 2008 with another satisfactory profit, thus
continuing what is now a long run of profitable quarterly results, At €785m
(974m), quarterly netincome is not as high as in the previous year, but we are
well within the target corridor for 2008 as a whole. At year-end, we aim to post
a profit of €3.0-3.4bn and a return of at least 15% on our risk-based capital.

The quarterly financial statements are marked by a considerable cost burden
from major losses in the reinsurance segment, but nevertheless show a clos-
ing profit of €686m. In the previous year, it was more or less a single natural
catastrophe event — the European winter storm Kyrill - that impacted our quar-
terly result on the claims side. By contrast, from January to March 2008 we
were hit by several major losses each in the two-digit million euro range,
which together resulted in a burden of €578m and increased the combined
ratio to 103.8%. Should such losses or their clustering unsettle us? Not in my
opinion. It is far more important that the technical quality standards we apply
to our business are maintained and are geared to sustained profitability.
Random losses only occur “predictably” over longer periods; in individual
quarters or financial years, they will recurrently lead to fluctuations in the
result - both upwards and downwards. Indeed, this is inherent in the very
purpose of reinsurance itself,

As inthe preceding quarters, primary insurance again earned its expected
share of the Group result, even though its profit contribution of €163m was
below last year's figure (€250m), which benefited from one-off effects.

Given the turmoil on the capital markets in the first quarter of 2008, | consider
the investment result to be satisfactory. We had to absorb write-downs of our
equities totalling €1,332m, but thanks to our prudent investment policy these
were partly offset by large gains on derivative hedging instruments. in the
previous year, we had realised substantial gains on the sale of real estate and
equities, but these could not be reproduced in the current environment. We
remain unaffected by any notable burdens resulting from the subprime crisis.

Reinsurance prices are now coming under intense competitive pressure in
most regions and in many classes of business. So far, we have handled this
development very well, with our very good market and client access allowing
us to systematically restructure our portfolio to safeguard profitability. That is
what matters to us. In reinsurance business, there are phases of the cycle
where you must refrain from growing if profitability is not ta be jeopardised.
At present, we consider this to be the case. Profit-oriented management of
our reinsurance business will thus require our full attention in the coming
months. Inthe treaty renewals as at 1 July, which focus on the USA, we will
adhere strictly to our underwriting policy of risk-adequate prices and con-
ditions and accept reductions in premium income if this is the only way to
ensure our profitability. | cannot say it emphatically enough: premium growth
in traditional reinsurance business is not on the agenda for us in the current
market phase.
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We will continue to drive forward our initiatives to expand business in “rein-
surance close to primary insurance’, where development is independent of
the reinsurance cycle described above. Changing Gear points the way forward
here, just as it does in primary insurance and in the International Heaith
segment.

Yours sincerely,

Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman of Munich Re's Board of Management:-, -
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Interim management report

Key parameters

- Global growth prospects impaired by financial market crisis
— US economy exposed to major risks
— Growth in the eurozaone still rebust

The global economy faced greater uncertainty in the period under review as

a result of the financial market crisis and its increasing effects on the stock
markets and the real eccnomy. Whereas fears of a recession strengthened in
the USA, the growth dynamics of most other economies remained relatively
robust. Besides the emerging markets, of which China was especially predom-
inant, the eurozone played a key role in driving the global economy. In Japan,
by contrast, the economic climate became less favourable.

According to initial estimates, in the first quarter of 2008 the US economy
recorded a seasonally adjusted and annualised real growth rate of 0.6% over
the previous quarter. It was impaired by a continuing weak property market,
the resultant financial market crisis, and a decline in consumer confidence.

Economic data from the eurozone, however, indicated that the previous year's
upswing was still ongoing despite the export sector being hampered by the
marked increase in the euro against the US doilar. Unemployment in the euro-
zone is on the decrease, and early indicators in the reporting period such as
the Purchasing Manager’s index for the manufacturing industry also pointed
to a stable - if somewhat weaker - economic trend.

In Germany, growth dynamics in the first quarter were still at a relatively high
level. As well as the continued stability of the industrial sectar, the positive
situation was due not least to domestic demand benefiting from the recovery
af the labour market. The much-heeded ifo business climate index even rose
slightly in the first three months.

Whilst the economic situation in Japan weakened again in the period under
review after a strong fourth quarter, China ¢ontinued to provide major irm-
pulses for the global economy, growing by 10.6% in real terms year on year,
albeit with slightly less momentum. Equally, growth in most of the other
emerging markets of Asia, eastern Europe and Latin America was generally
still quite vigorous.

On the currency markets, the value of the euro increased further against the
US dollar, reaching a new all-time high in late March: rising from US$ 1.46 at
year-end 2007, the exchange rate at the end of the quarner was US$ 1.58. The
US Federal Reserve responded to the ongoing liquidity and confidence crisis
as well as the price losses on the financial markets with several cuts in its key
interest rate. In total, up to the end of April, it lowered the reference interest
rate by 225 basis points — from 4.25% to 2.00%. By contrast, in view of the still-
robust economic development and concerns over inflation, the European
Central Bank left its key interest rate unchanged at 4.0%. In this environment,
long-term interest rates sank still further in both the USA and the eurozone.
The main international share price indices recorded considerable losses,
which in some cases attained double-digit percentage figures.
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In the further course of the year, we anticipate a noticeable slackening in
worldwide economic growth if the high level of uncertainty persists. The US
economy is likely to decelerate considerably compared with the previous year,
and a recovery can only be anticipated in the second half of 2008 at the earli-
est if the impulses from fiscal policy succeed in producing the desired positive
-effect on domestic demand in the USA. Even if the favourable impact of
doimestic demand in the eurozone holds up, the global export climate is likely
to worsen - a situation that would also lead to a cooling of the German econ-
omy.

Given the current liquidity and confidence crisis on the financial markets, the
ecanomic prospects are subject to considerable uncertainties. |n particular,
were the crisis to spread to other financial sector segments, this would impair
the real economy still further. Besides this, the continued strong decline in the
US dollar and increasing risk of inflation represent significant risks in the light
of oil- and food-price developments.

The immediate consequences of the financial market crisis and the height-
ened economic uncertainties for the primary and reinsurance markets were
comparatively moderate in the reporting period, hardly influencing the main
reinsurance treaty renewals at 1 January. If the economic slowdown antici-
pated in the further course of the year occurs, this would also affect the
demand for insurance cover, although the lower investment returns expected
by insurance companies are likely to stabilise premium levels.
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Key reinsurance figures

Business experience from
1 January to 31 March 2008

Reinisurance

- Successful treaty renewals at 1 January 2008 in the face of mounting com-
petitive pressure

- Combined ratio of 103.8%, with substantial cost burden from major losses

- Investment result affected by market turmoil

- Satisfactory result of €586m

Q12008 Q12007

Grass premiums written €bn 55 5.8
Loss ratio property-casualty % 4.8 76.6
Expense ratio property-casualty % 29.0 25.2
Combined ratio property-casualty % 103.8 101.8
Thereof natural catastrophes Percentage points 10.7 12.2
Investment result €m 1.000 1.324
Result before impainment losses of goodwill €m 862 1,059
Consofidated result €m 586 798
Thersof attributable to minority interests _— €m - -
31.3.2008 31.12,2007

investments €bn 75.9 81.9
Net technical provisions €bn 53.3 55.5

The Munich Re Group's reinsurance segment mainly comprises the oper-
ations of the Group's reinsurance companies. These include health reinsur-
ance, which together with the non-German health insurance business written
by our primary insurance companies makes up the International Health
segment.

Qur reinsurance business performed satisfactorily overall in the first quarter
of 2008, as evidenced by the segment’s consolidated result of €586m (798m).
Although a higher number of medium-sized claims led to significant expend-
iture, we posted an operating result of €862m {1,059m) owing to a pleasing
investment result (given the difficuit environment) and our satisfactory under
writing result.

Thanks to our widely diversified profitable book of business and prudent in-
vestments, we are in a position to generate solid returns and offer our clients
reliable cover even in times when a cluster of such major losses occurs.

QOur reinsurers’ investment result totalled €1,000m (1,324m} in the first quar-
ter. It was largely influenced on the one hand by increased impairment losses
of €745m {14m} on equities ~ due to price falls on the stock markets —and, on
the other hand, by income of €663m {71m} from the revaluation of derivative
financial instruments acquired for hedging purposes. In addition, regular
investment income declined by €88m to €648m, owing to reduced interest
earnings from a lower volume of deposits with reinsurance clients.

As at 1 January 2008, Munich Re renewed some two-thirds of its treaty busi-
ness in property-casualty reinsurance. The market was characterised by grow-
ing competition, which in turn exerted greater pressure on prices. Given the
good results and favourable capital market conditions of recent years, many
companies have improved their financial strength, so that a stagnationin
demand coincided with a high level of capacity. We nevertheless succeeded in
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keeping price erosion down to about 3%, which is why our portfolio still has
solid earnings potential after the renewals. While prices in industrial business
dropped appreciably, personal lines business in property reinsurance was
subject to only minor price fluctuations. In regions affected by natural catas-
trophe losses in 2007, prices tended,to be more stable.

We were able to partially offset unprofitabie business, which we systematic-
ally withdrew from, by acquiring business in attractive segments. Growth
areas are tapped by Munich Re particularly in fields where it is able to outpoint
competitors in térms of risk knowledge or particular client access. Examples
are the reinsurance of highly-exposed industrial risks or special natural catas-
trophe covers, where exceptional know-how is needed to properly assess the
risks involved. In addition, not least thanks to its excellent market position,
Munich Re has access via long-term strategic partnerships to successful niche
business in primary insurance.

Compared with the same quarter last year, our premium volume fell mod-
erately by 5.6% to €5.5bn {5.8bn). This decline was partly attributable to
developments in exchange rates, with the euro rising against many other
currencies, Without currency translation effects, premium income was €379m
higher and showed a 0.9% increase over the previous year.

Gross premiums by division Q12008

Special and Financial Risks 11% (6%)]
\

<

Lite/Health 31% {31%
Germany, Asia Pacific _ LiteHea 31%)

and Africa 15% {15%) -

Europe and
Latin Amaerica 20% (19%)

P,
\ Global Clisnts/North America 23% {29%)

In the life and health segment, our premium income reduced by 6.3% to
€1.7bn (1.8bn), owing to currency developments and the scheduled reduction
of large-volume individual tresties. If exchange rates had remained the same,
premium would have fallen by only 1.2%. The operating result for the segment
was nevertheless up €59m to €340m owing to significantly reduced expenses.
Furthermore, new information on tax obligations from previous years led

to a considerably lower tax burden in the quarter under review.

in property-casualty reinsurance, our premium income experienced a mar
gina! exchange-related decline of 5.3% to €3.8bn (4.0bn). Without currency
transtation effects, it rose by 1.8%. At 103.8% (101.8%), our combined ratio in
the first three months of the year was higher than expected. The total burden
from major losses was €578m (538m)*, accounting for 17.8% (15.5%)" of the
combined ratio. The largest individual losses were two floods in Australia in
January and February, each costing us nearly €100m. Besides this, we had to
establish provisions of some €75m for Winter Storm Emma, which wreaked
heavy damage especially in Germany and Austria. Ultimately, this exceptional
loss expenditure was only partly offset by earnings from our lucrative basic
business, causing our operating result in this segment to decrease by €256m
to €522m.

* Adjusted owing to change in method.
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Key primary insurance figures

Primary insurance

- Growth in Germany and abroad: Gross premium income increases to €5.1bn
— Combined ratio improved to 89.0%

- Investment result affected by market turmoit

- Satisfactory result of €163m

Q12008 Q1 2007

Total premium fncome €bn 5.1 4.9
Gross premiums written €bn 4.8 4.8
Loss ratio property-casualty % 54.3 67.1
Expense ratio property-casuvalty % 334 36.9
Combined ratio property-casualty % g7.4 104.0
Combined ratio legal expenses insurance % 95.6 95.2
Combined ratio property-casualty including i:g:,al expenses insurance % 89.0 102.1
Investment result . €m 7186 1,963
Result before impairment losses of goodwitl €m 246 316
Consolidsted result €m 163 250
Thereof attributable to rminority interests €m 10 15
31.3.2008 31.12.2007

Investments €bn 109.2 108.3
Net technical provisions €bn 97.2 97.0

The Munich Re Group’s primary insurance segment mainly comprises the
operations of the ERGO Insurance Group, including those of the foreign
health primary insurers belonging to the business field of International
Health. ERGO contributes more than 93% of the segment’s premium
volume. The rest comes from Européische Reiseversicherung and the
Watkins Syndicate.

The results posted by our primary insurers in the first three months of 2008
were again good: the operating result totalted €246m (316m) {-22.2%) and the
consolidated result after tax €163m (250m) (-34.8%). From an underwriting
point of view, the first quanter of 2008 was outstanding: the combined ratio in
the property-casualty segment improved significantly to 89.0% (102.1%). In
the same period last year, the underwriting result had been burdened by
Winter Storm Kyrill, whilst in the period under review the beneficial effects of
the IBNR reserve set up at the end of 2007 were felt. The bottom-line decrease
against the first quarter last year was chiefly attributable to the investment
result.

The primary insurers’ investment result for the first three months of 2008 fell
by 63.5% to €0.7bn compared with the exceptionally good first quarter of 2007
(€2.0bn}. With regular income rising slightly, the decline was primarily due to
the deterioration in the balance from gains and losses on disposals by €952m
and from write-ups and write-downs, which totalled —€80m against €872m in
the first quarter of 2007. Whilst in the previous year we had achieved gains of
€1.1bn from the sale of a major real estate package and equities, the period
under review was adversely affected by the turmoil on the capital markets.
Price losses on the stock markets required us to make write-downs of equity
investments totalling €587m, of which only €468m was offset by gains from
the revaluation of derivatives acquired for hedging purposes.
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Total premium volume grew by 2.3% to €5.1bn {4.9bn). Since around 99% of
our primary insurance volume stems from the eurozone, currency translation
effects do not play a significant role here. All classes of business in Germany
and abrozd reccrdad growth. In tke iife and health segment, total premium
ingcome ros2 to €3.16r {(3.0bn}, while in property-casualty insurance {including
legal expenses insurance) volume was up by 2.3% to €1.95bn {1.90bn). Gross
premiums written totalled €4.80bn (4.76bn). Notincluded in this figure are the
savings premiums of unit-linked life insurance and capitalisation products
such as “Riester” pensions in Germany - product lines which are playing an
ever more important role for us.

Gross preamiums by class of insurance Q12008

Legal expenses 5% (5%)

.i]

Health 30% {29%) - - Propem/-casualty 35% {35%)

! Life 30% (31%}

In the first quarter of 2008, gross premiums written by our life insurers
amounted to €1.69bn (1.66bn). German new business posted double-digit
year-on-year growth as expected, the key factor behind the 39.6% increase in
annual premium equivalent! being the fourth Riester subsidisation stage,
which commenced at the beginning of the year. Many clients had requested
automatic adjustment of their insurance policies to the applicable subsidisa-
tion ceiling. If it had not been for this factor, new business would have
declined appreciably by 12.6%, mainly because the amended German insur-
ance contract law has made the sales process more complex: since the begin-
ning of the year, at least two meetings must be held with a client before a
policy is concluded. This fact is particularly strongly reflected in the figures for
the first quarter. New business abroad grew marginally by 0.8%, with positive
development in particular from the companies in the central and eastern Euro-
pean markets and in Italy.

In the first quarter of 2008, the ERGO Insurance Group and Wiener Stédtische
Versicherung AG Vienna Insurance Group jointly announced ERGQ's intention
to acquire a majority stake in the life insurance company Bank Austria Credit-
anstalt Versicherung, which will thus be included in our consolidated financial
statements. As a result, the ERGO Insurance Group’s share in Bank Austria
Creditanstalt Versicherung will rise to around 80%. The transaction is still
subject to the usual approvals by the authorities.

In health insurance, premium income in the first three months of 2008
climbed by 3.4% to €1.43bn (1.38bn). Growth in Germany, where premium
increased by 1.8% to €1.19bn {1.15bn), was more restrained than abroad. Busi-
ness with supplementary health insurance rose by 4.8%, while premium
income in comprehensive health insurance increased by only 1.3%, reflecting
the significantly adverse impact of the health reform on new business in this
line. Since February 2007, employees must earn a salary in excess of the rele-
vant statutory insurance contribution ceiling of €4,012.50 for three years
before becoming eligible to switch to private health insurance. During the

1 Annual premium equivalent = regular premium + 10% of single premiums.
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transition phase, which extends until January 2010, this is likely to have a
negative impact on new business in comprehensive health insurance, which
experienced a 26.4% year-on-year decline in the first three months of 2008. In
this context, allowance needs to be rmade for the fact that in January of the
previous year, we registered substantial new business because our customers
took strong advantage of the last opportunity to switch to private health insur-
ance. International business again recorded a robustincrease of 10.6% to
€254m {229m), for which high growth in Belgium and Spain was largely
responsible.

In property-casualty insurance, premium income increased to €1.95bn (1.90bn}
in the first quarter, with international business showing a particularly steep
rise of 1.8% to €680m {668m). In the markets of Poland, the Baltic States and
Turkey, expansion was very dynamic, but there was growth in Germany too.
Premium volume was up 2.5% to €1.3bn (1.2bn), chiefly because of an 8.0%
increase in premium volume in commercial/industrial business, which Munich
Re has written very profitably for many years. Personal lines business
remained largely stable. A further marginal reduction in motor business was
cornpensated for by moderate growth rates in personal accident and legal
expenses insurance.

Compared with the first quarter of the previous year, which had been bur-
dened by Winter Storm Kyrill, the incidence of natural catastrophe losses in
the first three months of 2008 was favourable. The combined ratio including
legal expenses insurance dropped to 89.0% {102.1%).
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Imastment result

Asset management

- Credit crisis leads to upheavals: stock markets also hit

- Equity exposure further reduced

- Very low exposure to problematic interest-bearing securities
- Investment result fatls by 46.6% to €1.7bn

Q12008 Q12007 Change

€m €m Y%

Regular income 1,770 1,827 _31
Wite-upslwrite-downs -493 -246 -100.4
ﬁ( t realised capital gains 742 1,691 -56.1
Other income/expenses -332 —m —199.1

Etal

1,687 3.161 -46.6

Imrestment result by type of investmuant

1 2008 Q12007 Change

€m €m %

Eal estate 2 586 -98.5
Grestments in affiliated companies =2 ~1 ~100.0
Imrestments in associates a7 21 123.8
ﬁ}ngage loans and other loans 402 327 229
Other securities 1,441 2,173 -33.7
a posits ratained on assumed reinsurance and other investments 72 126 -429
Grestments for the benefit of life insurance policyhalders who bear the investment risk -193 15 -
§penses far the management of investments and other expenses 89 86 35

Total

' 1,687 3.161 —46.6

For the period January to March, the Munich Re Group posted an investment
result of €1,687m (3,161m}, or 46.6% less than in the same period last year.

Compared with the previous year, regular income from investments was
down by 3.1% to €1,770m {1,827m). This was due mainly to a decline in inter
est from deposits retained on assumed reinsurance. By contrast, our primary
insurance subsidiaries recorded a slight increase in regular investment
income, which was largely attributable to increased investments in higher-
interest securities in the phase of rising interest rates in the first three quarters
of 2007. As at 31 March 2008, our primary insurers had approximately €84.8bn
or 81.2% of their assets invested in fixed-interest securities and loans.

in the period under review, we posted net realised gains on disposal of just
€742m {1,681m). In the first quarter of 2007, the sale of a real-estate package
camprising residential and commercial properties throughout Germany had
alone led to gains on disposal of around €530m. This year, we posted a net
result of €182m (€1,217m} on the disposal of equities in the first three
months. The decrease against the same period last year is mainly attributable
to our reduced selling activities in the softening stock markets.

In the first quarter, the net result of write-ups and write-downs of our invest-
ments was —€493m (-246m)}, of which write-downs of items in our equity port-
folios totalled €1,332m {29m} and write-ups €27m (5m).

Share portfolios are always categorised as “available for sale’ and changes in
their value are recognised in equity with no effect on profit or loss. Only when
they are sold are the amounts of such holdings recorded in the income state-

ment.
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An exception to this rule exists in the event of an impairment. In particular, we
consider an equity investrnent to be subject to an impairment if its stock mar-
ket price falls below the average historical acquisition cost either for a sus-
tained period, i.e. at least six months, or significantly, i.e. by at least 20%. In
the event of an impairment, the accumulated loss previously recognised in
equity is eliminated and included in the income statement.

Further declines in the prices of securities that have already been written
down once are recognised immediately in the income statement. Approxi-
mately half of the write-downs involving our equities portfolio were related to
the aforementioned impairments as a consequence of the correction on the
stock markets in the first quarter.

Impairments on financial instruments “held for trading” must always be rec-
ognised in the income statement. These include derivatives such as options,
futures, swaps and forwards, which we chiefly employ for hedging purposes.
The balance of write-ups and write-downs of derivatives in the first quarter
was €902m (-165m), of which €904m was attributable to derivatives with non-
fixed-interest underlying business.

If derivatives are used for the economic hedging of equities against fairvalue
changes, only the changes in the derivatives’ values are recognised in the
income statement. Countervailing changes in the value of equities are recog-
nised in equity with no effect on profit or loss. The ensuing fluctuations in

. results can only be avoided by using hedge accounting, whereby the changes
iri value of both transactions are recognised’in the income statement, where

they largely cancel each other out. Approximately half of the aferementioned
write-downs on our equity portfolio involved hedged assets and were conse-
quently offset by gains on a similar scale from the revaluation of the associ-
ated derivative financial instruments.

For financial instruments exposed to the US subprime mortgage market, the
position remains difficult. The Munich Re Group has only a small amount
invested in such instruments {inciuding credit derivatives) — around €280m,
equivalent to less than 0.2% of our gverall investment portfolio. The revalu-
ation of financial assets exposed to the US subprime mortgage market led to
write-downs totalling €5.0m in the first quarter.

Our portfolio of asset-backed securities and mortgage-backed securities has a
volume of slightly less than €5.9bn, which is approximately €0.4bn more than
at the start of the year. The portfolio has a good rating structure: as at 31
March 2008, 97.9% of the securities were rated A to AAA. Although the finan-
cial crisis has now extended beyond subprime mortgage loans, we do not
expect a permanent decrease in the value of this portfoiio, and we have not
been affected by significant defaults.

Our portfolio of bonds guaranteed by US bond insurers {“monoliners”)
amounted to around €380m {320m) as at 31 March 2008. The downgrading
of monoliner ratings has not led to significant losses in value in our portfolio
so far.
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Imrestment mix

Reinsuranca Primary insurance Asset Total

Life and health Property-casualty Lils and health Property-casualty management
- €m? 313, gz 313, 3112 313, 312 N3 3z 313 3112, 3.3, 312,

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land and buildings,
inluding buildings on
third-party land 389 452 630 649 2,472 2,500 9 94 50 58 3692 3,753
Eiestments in affiliated
companies 34 39 50 57 37 34 107 73 13 12 24 215
rr;testments in associates 81 87 153 182 g4 389 294 245 45 50 957 953
E ans 142 128 225 163 35206 33,537 1,704 1,666 1 B 37278 35,502
O her securities held to maturity - _ N Z 174 192 ) 8 - - 180 200
(-'J-':her securities available for sale
ﬁ(ed-intcrest 10,167 9,229 33,867 38,143 42,849 42,647 4,493 4,546 56 20 91,432 94,585
N sn-fixed-interest 1,992 1,817 7149 9,866 9,317 11,008 1460 1,651 n 7 19929 24,449
Biher securities held for trading
ﬁ-:ed-interest 10 B 335 356 75 17 293 Fhil - - 713 722
Non-fixgd-interest - - 8 ) - - 8 7 - - 14 15
asrivatives 177 96 3anm 130 776 303 kil 14 - - 1,285 543
E:posits retained on
arsumed reinsurance 4,972 6,216 1,685 1,710 B2 276 4 4 - - 6,943 8,206
alher investments 947 537 1.880 1,18 1,383 2,315 882 409 300 454 5392 4,833
Fvestmems for the benefit of
Ifle insurance policyholders
who bea: the investment risk - 2,103 2,178 - - - - 2,103 2,178

iltal

| 18911 IERED +5.333. XY 9s.058 95,455 8,998 486 609 e L) 176,154

1, After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments,

The carrying amount of the Munich Re Group’s investments shows a fall of
3.4% since the beginning of the year to €170bn {176bn).

In our investment strategy, which follows the holistic approach of asset-liabil-
ity management, the structure of our liabilities plays a key role. The character-
istics of the payment obligations from insurance business, including their
dependence on economic factors such as interest rates, currency and infla-
tion, determine the investments selected. This cushions our assets somewhat
against the effect of capital market fluctuations.

Furthermore, our investment strategy is committed to the principle of sustain-
ahility. We aim to invest at least 80% of the market value of our investments in
assets which are included in a sustainability index or satisfy generally recog-
nised sustainability criteria.

At the end of the guarter, fixed-interest securities and loans made up approxi-
mately 76% of our total investments at carrying amounts.

As risk spreads in the first quarter increased considerably in comparison to
interest rates for government bonds, we are carefully and selectively expand-
ing our portfolio of credit-exposed securities.

Owing to disposals, currency translation effects and price losses, the carrying
amount of equities (including investments in affiliated companies and associ-
ates) fell €4.5bn in the first quarter to €19.5bn, which at market value is equiva-
lent to 11.6% of our total investments. However, because we have hedged our
equities portfolio to a substantial extent using derivatives, our economic
exposure to equities accounts for only 7.2% (10.8%} of our investments at
market value.

Net unrealised gains based on the market valuation of our securities available
for sale totalled €4.8bn {6.7bn) at the end of the quarter {see table on page 37).
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- Net unrealised gains on fixed-interest securities increased in the first quarter
to €0.7bn (0.0bn) owing to the slight decrease in the risk-free interest rate
due to the credit market crisis and the resulting rise in value of low-risk
securities such as government bonds,

- Net unrealised gains on non-fixed-interest securities available for sale
decreased by €2.6bn to €4.1bn {6.7bn} in the first quarter. This is a conse-
quence of the price corrections on the stock markets which continued in the
first quarter of 2008 due to the US mortgage market crisis.

Valuation reserves not recognised in the balance sheet

Valuation Fair value Carrying Valuation Fair value Carrying

reserves amount reserves amount

31.3.2008 31.3.2008 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.12.2007 31.12.2007

Land and buildings! 1,407 7348 5,941 1,556 1547 5,991
Associates 266 1.215 949 337 1,277 9490
Loans -733 36,545 37278 -1,323 34,179 35,502
Other securities 1 13 180 - 200 200

Total

570 43,203 42,633

! Including owner-occupied proparty.

The off-balance-sheet valuation reserves in the table mainly derive from loans
recognised in the balance sheet at amortised cost, owner-occupied and invest-
ment property, and investments in associates. Net off-balance-sheet valuation
reserves on our investments (excluding owneroccupied property) totalled
€0.7bn (0.3bn) on 31 March 2008.

In connection with our loan portfolio, almost 100% of which is held by our pri-
mary insurers, there are also hidden negative valuation differences, due espe-
cially to the rise in long-term capital market interest rates in the European area
in 2007. In the first quarter of 2008, the hidden losses fell by €590m to €733m
as a result of decreasing yields. They are more than offset by the valuation
reserves on real estate and other investments, which totalled €1,674m.

Assats under management for third parties

31.3.2008 31.12.2007

Third-party investments €bn B.6 9.2
Q12008 Q12007

Group asset management result €m 25 34

MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH is the asset manager of
Munich Re and the ERGO Insurance Group. In addition to its function as asset
manager for the Group, MEAG also offers its expertise to private and institu-
tional clients.

Three new funds have been launched for private-client business, which offer
MEAG's customers the opportunity to invest among other things in a widely
diversified portfolio of companies that are benefiting from climate change.
The disquiet on the capital markets, however, has nonetheless led to the mon-
ies managed in private-client business falling to €2.3bn {2.5bn).
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From institutional clients, MEAG receives mandates for segregated funds and
direct investments. The new business in the ecclesiastical and pensions seg-
ments shows that MEAG is further strengthening its market position in its
core target group of risk-conscious investors such as insurance companies,
foundations and pension funds. in addition to the direct distribution channels,
cooperations have also been intensified with investment consultants who
advise institutional investors on their choice of asset managers.

Overall, assets under management for institutional investors fell to €6.3bn
(6.7bn) - chiefly due to sales of fund units in the course of profit-taking on the
property markets.

The assets managed by PICC Asset Management Company Ltd. (PAMC},
Shanghai, in which MEAG has a 19% stake, experienced an exchange-related
reduction to €6.4m (6.5m).
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Reinsurance

Prospects

- Premium income of €36.0-37.5bn expected

- Consolidated result of €3.0-3.4bn aimed at

- Sustained target: Return on risk-adjusted capital (RORAC) of at least 15%
after taxes on income

There are various reasons why the quarterly results of insurance companies,
including Munich Re, are not a suitable indicator for the resuits of the financial
year as a whole. Losses from natural catastrophes and other major losses
have a disproportionate impact on the result of the reporting period in which
they randomly and unforeseeably occur. Late-reported claims for major loss
events can also lead to substantial fluctuations in individual quarterly results.
And finally, gains and losses on the disposal of investments and write-downs
of investrments do not follow a regular pattern. Consequently, our guarterly
figures do not provide more than pointers to the result for the year that may
be expected.

Our Changing Gear programme ig being vigorously pursued in reinsurance.
We aim to generate an additional profit of €260m from new reinsurance activ-
ities by 2010, although market conditions will require us to withdraw from
individual traditional reinsurance treaties, which will have a lowering effect on
absolute earnings. With our strict cycle management and the consistent opti-
misation of our capital resources, we are on the right track to becoming and
remaining the most profitable of the five big reinsurers. The strategic business
initiatives needed for this, the constant improvement of our risk modelling,
even more active portfolio management in corporate underwriting, and tha
honing of our integrated risk management are well in hand and making the
desired progress.

In life reinsurance, we expect premium income to decline somewhat in 2008
owing to agreed reductions of several reinsurance treaties with large pre-
mium volumes. We nevertheless intend to achieve EEV earnings of between
8% and 9% in relation to the value of the business in force at the beginning of
the year.

There are many avenues for growth with various business models in the field
of healthcare. By conducting primary insurance and reinsurance “under one
roof’; we are able to generate more value since we are much closer to the
health services markets with our expertise and can thus focus more strongly
on our clients’ needs. We will intensify the close cooperation between Munich
Re and DKV in selected foreign markets. Our commitment in the US health-
care market will enhance our competitive position there: with effect from

1 April 2008, we acquired a 100% stake in Sterling Life Insurance Company in
Washington State for US$ 358m (€230m} via our subsidiary, Munich-American
Holding Corporation. With gross premium income of US$ 833m in 2007 and
more than 160,000 clients, Sterling Life Insurance Company is one of the lead-
ing health insurance providers for the 50+ age group, in particular for seniors
aged 65 and older.

In past years, we have laid the foundations in property-casualty reinsurance
for sustained profitability. Consequently, the renewals at 1 January 2008
(which involved approximately two-thirds of our property-casualty treaty
business} were satisfying as a whole, resulting in a slight overali reduction
in premium volume of about 4%.
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Primary insurance

With a volume of approximately €1bn, the renewals at 1 April 2008 involved
around 9% of the treaty business to be renewed, half of which concerned the
markets of Japan and Karea, with the other half centred on the US market. All
in all, the renewals proved successful. Price development varied considerably
bétween markets and classes of business. An aggregated look at the April
renewals reveals that the trend towards pressure on prices is continuing. We
steer our business with a view to ensuring risk-adequate prices for our port-
folio. This increasingly requires active cycle management in the form of shifts
within the portfolio. The stake we have acquired in ERGO Daum Direct Auto
Insurance Co. has enabled us to participate more strongly in Korean motor
business on the reinsurance side. And in the US market, we have already
recorded our first successes with the realignment of our US strategy and have
grown profitably in niches.

For the renewals at 1 July 2008 {parts of the US market, Australia, Latin Amer-
ica) we expect marginal price erosion similar to that experienced during the
two preceding renewals.

On 3 April, we closed the deal agreed in October 2007 to acquire US primary
insurer The Midland Company (Midland) via Munich-American Holding
Corporation. The agreement provides for an acquisition price of US$ 65 per
share; the total offer amounts to around US$ 1.3bn (€863m}. With premium
income of US$ 966m (832m) in 2007, Midland is one of the leading US spe-
cialty insurers and provides cover in niche segments, such as insurance for
rmanufactured housing and mobile homes. Within the cantext of our strategic
reorientation in the US insurance market, this transaction is a major step
towards achieving a leading position in special segments we consider of
strategic relevance.

For the current year, we aim to post an annual profit in reinsurance of
€2.7-2.9bn, This does notinclude the portion of the dividend from ERGQ that
will exceed the portion paid to Munich Reinsurance Company last year; the
dividend is eliminated in the consolidation process. This prognosis for the
annual profit in reinsurance is subject to considerable uncertainty, given the
degree of volatility on the capital markets and the high claims burden in the
first quarter of the year.

On the basis of unchanged currency translation rates for the rest of the year,
we expect gross premium income to range between €20.0bn and €21.0bn, a
decline compared with our year-end estimate that is largely attributable to
currency developments in the first three months of 2008 and also to the soft-
ening market. In property-casualty reinsurance business, our objective isto
achieve a combined ratio of 98%, with a loss burden from natural catas-
trophes of 6.5%. Following the high natural catastrophe losses in the first
quarter of 2008, however, we will only meet this target if random major losses
remain below our expectations for the rest of the year.

In life insurance, our objective is to achieve moderate growth in overall
premium income. We anticipate that premium volume in Germany will rise,
notably from unit-linked life insurance and capital-market-based products, The
income from “Riester” pensions is likely to increase, as are earnings from
company pension business. New business is expected to gather pace.

On 2 May 2008, with a view to developing business in the Indian life insurance
market, ERGO agreed with the Dethi-based HERQ Group to set up a joint ven-
ture, HERO ERGO Life Insurance Company Ltd. based in Mumbai, in which
ERGO will have a 26% stake. HERO ERGO Life Insurance Company is aiming to
write life primary insurance policies in India as from 2009. ERGO is paying
around €20m for its share.
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Munich Re Group

We project good growth for the healthcare segment. Our intention is to
expand moderately in Germany and to achieve a double-digitincrease in
premium from international business. Suppiementary health insurance will
continue to be the driver of growth in German business, while comprehensive
health insurance is likely to grow only slightly,

In life and health business, it is our objective to achieve EEV earnings of
between 8% and 9% in relation to the value of the business in force at the
beginning of the year.

We expect the property-casualty segment to expand appreciably, in particular
owing to strong growth in international business. Qur German business
should also grow somewhat in 2008, whereas the market as a whole is likely
to stagnate. As far as the result is concerned, our combined ratio for property-
casualty business (including legal expenses insurance) is on course to main-
tain the excellent level of under 95% in 2008.

The ERGO Group's overall premium income should grow by 3.0-4.5% in 2008
to around €18bn,

The gross premiums written by our primary insurers, which in addition to the
ERGO Insurance Group include Européische Reiseversicherung and the Wat-
kins Syndicate, should reach between €17.5bn and €18.0bn for 2008, thus
exceeding last year's figure of €17.3bn. We expect to achieve an annual result
in primary insurance of €600m to €800m, subject to good development on the
capital markets.

We will remain true to our principle of “profit before growth” In primary insur-
ance and reinsurance, we aspire to achieve profit growth rather than premium
growth.

Forthe current financial year 2008, we project that gross premiums written
will range between €36.0bn and €37.5bn provided that exchange rates de-
velop more stably in 2008 than in the past financial year. We aim for a return
on our investments of around 4.5% of their average market values. Given the
strong volatility of the capital markets, however, this long-term average target
is definitely ambitious in 2008. The use of derivative financial instruments for
hedging our portfolio and the inconsistencies in IFRS accounting described on
page 12 make it harder to predict the effect of rnarket developments on the
income statement. Write-downs and write-ups of our derivatives as well as
further write-downs of equities could have a significant impact on profit and
loss in the course of the year, whilst gains on the disposal of investments are
likely to be considerably lower than last year.

Our most important objective continues to be the profitability of the equity
capital deployed, and we aim to earn a sustained return on risk-adjusted cap-
ital (RORAC) of at least 15%. Qur expectations for the consolidated profit for
the year (subject to major-loss incidence and capital market developments) lie
in the range of £3.0-3.4bn. On the basis of our capitalisation at the turn of the
year 2007/2008, this is equivalent to a RORAC of between 16% and 18% and to
a return on equity of between 11.5% and 13%.

Having concluded the share buy-back programme of €2bn in the period May
2007 to January 2008, we intend to repurchase shares for atleast a further
€3bn by the end of 2010. By reducing the number of shares issued and improv-
ing our profit, we will be able to boost our earnings per share by an average of
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10% annually to €18 up to 2010. Qur intention in 2009 is to pay our sharehold-
ers a dividend of at least 25% of the IFRS consolidated result for the financial
year 2008, but no less than €1bn. Furthermore, the dividend per share in 2009
will amount to a minirnum of €5.50, thus attaining at least the same high level
asin 2008,

Changing Gear gives us a clear roadmap: to be among the top players in pri-
mary insurance and reinsurance by growing profitably and deploying our cap-
ital efficiently. That is the way to generate a consistently high return for our
shareholders. We will achieve these ambitious goals by resolutely pursuing
our strategy geared to sustained profitability in primary insurance and rein-
surance and exploiting the oppcrtunities that the global risk market presents.

The statements relating 1o opportunities and risks as presented in the Munich
Re Group Annual Report 2007 apply unchanged.
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Interim consolidated financial statements
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2008

Assots 31.12.2007 Change
€m €m €m €m €m %
A. Intangible assets
I Goodwili 3,063 3,135 -72 -23
1l. Other intangible assets 1,078 1,142 -B64 -5.6
4,141 4,277 -136 -3.2
B. Investments
|. Land and buildings, including buildings on
third-party land 3,692 3,783 -61 -1.6
Thereof:
Investment property held for sale 125 78 a7 60.3
II. Investmaents in affiliated companies and associates 1,198 1,168 30 26
ill. Loans 32278 35,502 1,776 5.0
. Other securities
1. Held to maturity 180 200 -20 -10.0
2. Available for sale 111,361 119,034 -7673 -6.4
3. Held for trading 2,012 1,280 732 57.2
113,553 120,514 -6,961 -5.8
V. Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance 5,943 8,206 -1,263 -15.4
V1. Other investments 5,392 4,833 559 11,6
168,056 173,976 -5,920 -34
C. Investments for the benefit of Efe insurance policyholders
who bear the investment risk . 2,103 2,178 -75 -34
D. Caded share of technical provisions 4,982 5,626 -644 -n.4a
E. Recoivables
. Current tax receivables 842 751 91 124
. Other receivables 8,383 8,636 -253 -29
9,225 9,387 -162 -1.7
F. Cash at bank, cheques and cash in hand 3,373 2,505 858 347
G. Defarred acquisition casts
Groass 8,437 8,388 49 0.6
Ceded share 110 86 24 27.9
Net ‘ E 8,327 8,302 5 03
H. Deferred tax assets 4,606 4,619 -13 -0.3
Thereof:
Deferred tax assets relating to disposal groups 2 3 -1 -333
I. Other assats 3,948 3,383 565 16.7
Thereof:
Owner-occupted proparty held for sale - - - -
Total assets 214,253 -5,492 -2.8
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Equ ity and liabilities 31.12.2007 Change
_ €m Em €m €m %
rEquhy
_I. {ssued capital and capital reserve 7388 7388 - -
IIl. Retained eamings 13,049 9,781 3,268 334
I}, Other reserves 2,033 3934 -1,91 ~48.3
. Consolidated result attributabl: to Munich Re equity holders 775 3,854 =-3,079 -79.9
V. Minority interests 512 501 1l 2.2
23,757 25,458 -1,701 -6.7
B. Subordinated liabilities 4,883 4,877 6 01
EGross tachnical provisions
. Unearned premivms 6,486 5,719 67 134
. Provision for future policy benefits 94,481 94,93% =454 =05
"I, Provision for outstanding claims 42,780 44,554 =1,784 -4.0
d—IV. Other technical provisions 9,541 10,536 -995 ~-9.4
- Thereof:
Provision for deferred premium refunds relating to disposal groups -116 -172 56 326
153,288 155,754 -2,466 -1.8
Fﬁms tachnical provisions for life insurance policies
where the investmant risk is bome by the policyholders 2,239 2,308 =69 =30
-E._Dther accrued liabilities 2,781 2,793 -12 -04
F_(abilities
"I, Bonds and notes issued 215 341 -26 ~76
. Deposits retained on ceded business 2,013 2,231 -218 -9.8
—III. Cunent tax liabilities 2,635 2,634 1 0.0
v Othar liabilities 9,686 10,762 -1,076 -10.0
Thereof:
Amounts due to banks relating to disposal groups 19 19 - -
14,649 15,968 =-1,319 -8.3
G. deferred tax liabilities 7164 7085 59 1.0
" Thereol;
Jeferred tax liabilities relating to d sposal groups -] 1 4 400.0

Totul equity and lisbilities
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Consolidated income statement for the period
1 January to 31 March 2008

terns. Q1 2008 Q1 2008 Q12008 Q12007 Changa
€m €m €m €m €m %
Gross pramiums wiitten 9,844 10,020 -178 -1.8
1. Earned premiums ’
Gross 8,370 9,143 -273 -30
Ceded 323 349 -26 -7.4
Net 8,547 8,794 -247 -28
2. Investment result
Investment incorne 4,527 3,985 542 13.6
lnvestment expenses 2,840 824 2,016 244.7
Total 1,687 3.161 -1,474 -46.6
Theraof:
Income from associates a7 21 26 123.8
3. Otherincome 1,049 412 637 154.6
Total income (1-3) 11,283 12,367 -1,084 -88
4. Net expenses for claims and benefits
Gross 7093 8,647 -1,554 -~18.0
Cedad share 158 226 -68 -30.1
Nat : 6,935 B A —-1,485 -17.6
5. Operating expenses
Gross 2,159 2,195 -36 ~1.6
Ceded share 51 78 -27 -34.56
Net 2,108 2,117 -9 -04
6. Othor expenses 1.089 516 573 1m.0
Total expenses (4-86) 10,132 11,054 -822 -8.3
7. Result before impairment losses of goodwill 1,151t 1,313 -162 -12.3
8. Impaimaent losses of goodwill - - - -
9. Operating resuht 1,151 1.313 -162 -12.3
10. Finance costs 86 70 16 22.9

1. Taxes on income 280 269 1 4.1
12. Consolidated resuft ‘ S 974 -189 -19.4

Thereof:

Attributable to Munich Re equity holders 958 -183 -19.1
Attributable to minority interests , 6 -6 -375

" € € %

Earnings per share 4,32 -0.53 -12.3

! Adjusted pursuant to 1AS 8.
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Consolidated income statement,

{cqquarterly breakdown)
tains Q1 2008 Q4 2007 Q3 2007 Q2 2007 a1 2007
—- €m €m €m €m Em
Gruss premiums written 9,644 9,186 9,148 8,908 10,020
_1: Eamed premiums
" “Gross 8,870 9,630 9,151 9,263 9,143
" “Caded 323 378 383 402 349
- Nat 8,547 9,252 8,768 8,861 8,794
2 Investment result
- Investment income 4,527 3,776 3,625 3,685 3,985
- Investment expenses 2,840 2,140 1,635 1,200 824
- Total 1,687 1,636 1,250 2,485 3,161
- Thereof:
Income from associates a7 -6 210 39 21
"3 Other income 1,049 804 553 607 412
Einl income {1-3) 11,283 11,692 n3n 11,953 12,367
"4 Net expenses for claims and benefits
Gross 7093 7472 7,462 7736 8,647
Ceded share 158 269 80 168 226
T Net 8,935 7203 7,282 7568 842
—g. Operating exponses
" Gross 2,159 2,448 2,263 2,365 2,195
" " Ceded share 5 66 107 142 78
" Net 2,108 2382 2,156 2,223 217
TE. Other expenses 1,089 998 7a1 627 516
ER!I expenses (4-6] 10,132 10,583 10,179 10,418 1,054
7. Result before impaimment losses of goodwill 1,151 1,109 1,132 1,635 1,313
8. Impairment losses of goodwill - n - - -
_9. Opermting result 1,151 1,098 1,132 1,535 1313
1_C. Finance costs 86 95 89 79 70
-1“‘.1. Taxes on income 280 414 -173 298 269
12. Consalidated resuht - . 7 589 1.216 1,158 a74
- Thereof: T T ’:'.‘ -
Attributable to Munich Re equity holders ' , ' 560 1,196 1,140 958
Attributable to minority interests . " e 29 20 18 16
- € € € €
Eemings per share 379 2.68 563 5.22 FET)
! fdjusted pursuant to IAS 8.
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Condensed statement of recognised income and expense
for the period 1 January to 31 March 2008

Qa1 2008 Q120071
€m €m
Consolidated result 785 974
Currency translation -579 ~42
Unrealised gains and losses on investments -1,344 -162
Change resulting from valuation at equity - -12
Change resulting from cash flow hedges 1 -1
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans -9 4
Change in consolldated group 20 -
Other changes - 4
Income and expense recognised directly in equity -1.9mM -209
Tatal recognised income and &xpense -1,128 765
Thereot:
Attributable to Munick Re equity holders -1,137 759
Attributable to minority interests 1" &
Changes in accordance with 1AS 8 - -7

! Adjusted pursuant to |1AS 8,
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Group statement of changes in equity

Equity attributable to Munich Re equity holders  Minority Total
interests equity
Istued Capital Retained earnings Other reserves  Consoli-
cadital ~ raserve dated
rasuit
Retained Own Unrealised  Reserva Valuation
aarnings shares gains from rasult
before held and  currancy from
deduction losses translation cash
of own flow
€m shares hedges
Status at 31.12.2006' 588 6,800 9,860 -460 6,241 -626 14 3.425 478 26,320
Allgcation to retained earnings - - 3,425 - - - - =3,425 - -
Totil recognised income and expense - - a8 - -164 42 -1 958 [ 765
Thereof:
Adjustments pursuant to 1AS B - - - - - 1 - -7 -1 -7
Dividend - - - - - - - - -4 -4
Share buy-hacks - - - =740 - - - - - =740
Ret rement of own shares - - - - - - - - - -
Status at 31.3.20071 588 6,800 13,293 -1,200 6,077 -668 13 958 480 26,341
Status at 31.12.2007 588 6,800 11,046 -1,265 5,095 -1,161 - 3,854 501 25,458
Allgcation to retained eamings - - 3,854 - - - - -3,854 - -
Totil recognised income and expense - - -1 - -1,332 -570 1 775 1 -1,126
Dividend - - - - - - - - - -
Share buy-hacks - - - -575 - - - - - -575

Ret. rement of own shares
Starus at 31.3.2008

1 Adjusted pursuant to IAS 8.
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Condensed consolidated cash flow statement for the period
1 January to 31 March 2008

Q1 2008 Qt 2007

€m €m

Consalldated result 785 974
5 Net change In technical provisions -956 2,086
Change in deferred acquisition costs -46 =170
Change in deposits retained and accounts raceivable and payabte 1,058 270
Change in other receivables and liabilities 672 1,681
Gains and losses on the disposal of investments —742 -1,691
Change in securities held for trading 704 -59
Change in other balance sheet items -493 16
Other income/expenses without impact on cash flow 1,001 370
I. Cash flows from operating activities 1,943 3577
Inflows from the sale of consolidated companies - -
Cutflows for the acquisition of consolidated companies 40 n
Change from the acquisition, sale and maturities of other investments 749 —2,845
Change from the acquisition and sale of investments for unit-linked life insurance -17 -93
Other 5 93
II. Cash flows from investing activities 597 -2,857
Inflows frem increasas in capital -~ -
QOutflows for share buy-backs 575 740
Dividend payments - -
Change from cther financing activities -1,057 9
. Cash flows from financing activities -1,632 -1
Cash flows for the financial year {l + Il + 11} 908 -Nn
Effect of exchanye rate changes on cash -40 -6
Cash at the beginning of the financial yesr 2,505 2,172
Cash at the end of the financial year 3,373 2,155

! Adjusted pursuant to |AS 8.
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Segment reporting

Segment assets
Reinsurance
Life and health Property-casualty
€m 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007
A. Intangible assets 287 338 1,164 1,240
B. Investments
[. Land and buildings, including buildings on third-party land 389 452 680 649
Theraof:
Investment property held for sale - - - -
1. Investments in affiliated companies and associates 2,192 2,480 3,668 3,427
{ll. Loans 144 235 228 308
V. Other securities
1. Held to maturity - - - -
2. Available for sale 10,492 11,146 42,683 43,009
3. Held for trading 187 104 644 494
10,679 11,250 43,327 48,503
V. Depaosits retained on assumed reinsurance 9,87 11,082 1,691 1,714
VI. Other investments 1,007 609 1,978 1,208
24,282 26,108 51,672 55,807
C. Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders who bear the
investment risk - - - -
D. Ceded share of technical provisions 524 764 2,540 3,024
E. Other segment assets 5,969 5,833 9,247 8,324

Thereof:
Other segment assets relating to disposal groups

Total segment assets

b
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Primary insurance Asgset management Consolidation Total

Life and health Property-casualty
31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31,3.2008 31.12.2007 3132008 31.12.2007
1,660 1,666 1,021 1,024 1" 1 -2 -2 4,141 4,277
2473 2,501 a1 94 60 58 -1 -1 3,892 3,753
109 42 - 20 16 i6 - - 125 78
566 559 3,216 3,132 94 99 -8,528 -8,529 1,188 1,168
36,808 35,130 1,753 1,720 1 ? -1,856 -1,898 37278 35,502
174 192 6 8 - - - - 180 200
52,166 53,655 5,953 6,197 67 i - - 11,361 119,034
51 380 330 302 - - - - 2,02 1,280
53,191 54,227 6,289 6,507 67 27 - - Nn3,5583 120,514
284 278 19 18 - - -4,922 —-4,886 6,943 8,206
1,536 2,346 200 602 300 455 -329 -38% 5,392 4,833
94,848 95,041 12,268 12,073 522 646 -15,436 -15,699 168,056 173,976
2,103 2,178 - - - - - - 2,103 2,178
6,670 6,612 1,622 1,489 - - -6,374 -6,263 4,982 5,626
1,793 12,0m 4,303 4,287 138 18 -1.aN -2,447 29,479 28,196
2 2 - 1 - - - - 2 3

117074 . " 117508
PN

4.18,873
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Segment reporting

Segment equity and liabilities
Reinsurance
Life and health Property-casualty
€m 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007
A. Subordinated liabilities 1,688 1,910 2,814 2,584
B. Gross technical provisions
I. Unearned premiums 191 186 4,259 4,080
It. Provision for future policy benefits 13,366 14,668 652 748
Hl. Provision for outstanding claims 3,445 3,653 33,284 34,783
IV. Other technical provisions B8589 850 294 274
Theraof:
Provision for deferred premium refunds relating to disposal groups - - - -
17861 19,357 38,489 39,885
C. Gross technicel provisions for life insuranca policies where the investment
risk is bome by the policyholders - - - -
D. Other nccrued liabilities 239 302 517 a7
E. Other sagment liabilities 4,199 5,182 7593 8,004
Thereof:

Other segment liabilities relating to disposal groups

Total segment iisbilities

30
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Primary insurance Asset management Consolidation Total
Life and health Property-casualty

31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007
2 - 3N 393 - - -12 -10 4,883 4,877
17 104 2,219 1,613 - - -354 -264 6,486 5,719
84,942 83,958 321 310 - - -4,800 -4,749 94,481 94,935
2,121 2,186 4,885 4,97 - - -955 -975 42,780 44,564
8,522 9,554 na 122 - - -252 -264 9,541 10.536
-118 -172 - - - - - - -116 -172
95,756 95,802 7543 6,962 - - ~6,361 =-6,252 153,288 155,754

u
2,239 2,308 - - - - - - 2,238 2,308
802 767 1,267 1,287 42 44 -86 -84 2,781 2,793
14,178 14,381 4,280 4,421 440 512 -8,877 -9,437 21,813 23,063
5 1 - - 19 19 - - 24 20
113258 [ L . -15,336 -15,783 185,004 188,795
Equity 23,757 25,458
Total equity and liabilities 208,761 214,253
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Segment reporting

Segment income statement {1,1.-31.3.2008)

Reinsurance

Life and health Property-casusaity
€m Q1 2008 Q1 2007 Q1 2008 Q1 2007
Gross pramiums wirittan 1,678 1,71 3814 4,029
Therecof:
From Insurance transactions with other segments 195 184 260 369
Fram insurance transactions with extemnal third parties 1,483 1,607 3,554 3,660
1. Eamed premiums
Gross 1,663 1,71 3,407 3,651
Ceded 74 a5 156 174
Net 1,589 1,725 3,251 3,477
2. Investment result
Investmant income 650 4598 1,879 1,253
Investment expenses 276 81 1,253 345
Total 374 417 626 907
Thereof:
Income from associates 2 1 26 6
3. Other income 183 ) 394 19
Total income {1-3) 2,146 2,202 4,271 4,503
4. Expenses for claims and benefits
Gross 1,271 1,397 2,554 2,793
Ceded share 15 36 106 121
Net 1,256 1,381 2,448 2,672
5. Dperating expenses
Gross 407 477 968 950
Ceded share 22 1 26 72
Net 385 478 942 878
&, Other expenses 165 84 359 175
Total expenses (4-6) 1,806 1,921 3,749 3725
7. Rasult befare impairment losses of goodwill 340 23 522 178
8. impaiment losses of goodwill - - - -
9, Operating result 178
10. Finance costs a
11. Taxes on income m
12. Consolidated resuit T LT 626
Thereof: . .
Attributable to Munich Re equity holders 628
Attributable to minority interests S

! Adjusted pursuantto IAS 8,
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Primary insurance Asset management Consolidation Total

Life and health Property-casuslty
Q1 2008 Q1 2007 11 2008 Q1 2007 Q1 2008 Q1 2007 Q1 2008 Qi 2007 Q1 2008 ait 2007
2,857 2,855 1,948 1,903 - - -451 -558 9,844 10,020
1 1 -5 4 - - -451 -558 - -
2,856 2,854 1,951 1,899 - - - - 9,844 10,020
2,789 2,789 1,368 1,299 - - -357 -367 8,870 9,143
227 226 223 270 - - —-357 -367 323 a9
2562 2,563 1,145 1,029 - - - - 8,547 8,794
1,835 2,063 205 321 24 27 -66 -177 4,527 3,985
1,228 395 98 26 1 2 -14 -26 2,840 824
G607 1,668 109 295 23 28 -52 =151 1,687 3,161
-3 4 ) 1 18 9 - - a7 21
467 252 164 154 69 106 -228 -2719 1,049 412
3,636 4,483 1,418 1,478 92 ki -280 -430 1,283 12,367
2,785 3,899 762 B3S - - -2719 =277 7093 8,647
148 169 19 152 - - -230 -252 158 226
2,637 3,730 643 683 - - -49 -25 6,935 8,421
439 424 438 439 - - -93 -85 2,159 2,195
54 52 47 53 - - -98 -100 51 18
385 372 39 386 - - 5 5 2,108 27
514 267 238 207 61 85 -248 =302 1,089 516
3,536 4,369 1,272 1,276 61 85 =292 =322 10,132 11,054
100 14 148 202 ki 46 12 -108 1,151 1,313
100 N4 146 202 R 46 12 -108 1,151 1,313
- - 6 ] 1 1 - =1 86 70

a2 58 35 2 5 1 1 1 280 269
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Segment reporting

Investments’
Reinsurance Primary insurance Asset management Total
€m 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008  31.2.2007
Europe 38,110 42,820 98,990 99,324 437 559 137537 142,703
North America 22,951 23,965 3,541 3,349 19 20 26,511 27334
Asia and Australasia 2,891 2,944 1,694 1.632 30 30 4,615 4,606
Africa, Near and Middle East 562 684 95 40 - - 657 724
Latin America 730 678 109 109 - - 839 787

Total

R now

! After alimination of intra-Group transactions across segmants.

Gross premiums written'

104,429 104,454 IS

176,154

Reinsuranca Primary insurance Total

€m Q12008 Q1 2007 Q1 2008 Q1 2007 Q1 2008 Q12007

Europe 2,536 2,769 4,741 4,672 12717 744

North America 1,48% 1,561 25 22 1,506 1,583

Asla and Austratasia 496 430 26 47 522 537

Africa, Near and Middle East 226 173 14 n 240 184

Latin America 298 274 1 1 299 275
Total )

! After limination of intra-Group reinsurance across sagments.

34 Munich Re Group Quarterly Report 1/2008




Recognition and measurement

Zhanges in the consolidated group

Selected notes to the consolidated financial statements

This quarterly report as at 31 March 2008 has been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as applicable in the
European Union. We have complied with all new and amended IFRSs and
IFRIC interpretations whose appiication is compulsory for the first time for
periods beginning on 1 January 2008. These amendments do not have any
material impact.

Otherwise, the same principles of recognition, measurement and consolida-
tion have been applied as in our consolidated financial statements as at

. 31 Degember 2007. In accordance with |AS 34.41, greater use is made of esti-

:

mation methods and planning data in preparing our quarterly figures than in
our annual financial reporting.

Taxes on income in the Munich Re Group's quarterly financial statements are
calculated in the same way as for the consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2007, i.e. a direct tax calculation is made per quarterly result of
the individual consolidated companies.

As at 28 March 2008, we acquired 65% of the share capital of ERGO Daum
Direct Auto Insurance Co., Seoul, for a price of €68.9m, which includes all the
incidental acquisition expenses and other charges, such as fees for consulting
services and taxes incurred, and was partially paid through a capital increase.

ERGO Daum Direct has an exceptional competitive position in the South
§Qrea_m direct motor ipsu_ran‘ce market and is the country’s second-largest

3 N s ] i PA Y
mec.orinsurer. MR I S 2

The company was consolidated for the first time in our financial statements as
at the end of the first quarter 2008, No income or expenses have impacted the
consolidated income statement so far. In the first quarter, the insurer recorded
premium income of €42.0m. Owing to a one-off effect, the post-tax result
achieved on this was —€12.2m. For the year as a whole, we expect a break-
even result,

The opening balance sheet at the time of acquisition includes the following
IFRS figures (amounts directly prior to the business combination}: intangible
assets of €26.4m (1.8m), investments of €112.2m (112.1m), a ceded share of
technical provisions of €55.0m (52.1m)}, other assets of €49.7m {48.2m), gross
technical provisions of £120.7m (116.0m) and other liabilities of €58.8m
{52.1m).

In connection with the acquisition of the shareholding in ERGO Daum Direct
Auto Insurance, goodwill of €26.3m and other intangible assets of €24.6m
have been recognised. The goodwill and other intangible assets are based on
our expectations regarding the group’s profitability and growth potential,
deriving in particular from the company’s good reputation and brand, experi-
enced management team, and integration in ERGO's international insurance
network.

The following business combinations were effected after the balance sheet
date:

On 3 April 2008, through its subsidiary Munich-American Holding Corpor-
ation, Wilmington, the Munich Re Group acquired 100% of the share capital

of US primary insurer The Midland Company {Midland) based in Cincinnati,
Ohio, for a total price of €863.3m. The purchase price includes all the incidental
acquisition expenses and other charges, such as fees for consulting services
and taxes incurred.
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Via its wholly owned subsidiary American Modern Insurance Group, Midland
is a leading US specialty insurer in niche segments such as insurance for
manufactured housing, motorcycles, watercraft, snowmobiles and mobile
homes and also credit life insurance.

Midland's provisional opening balance sheet at the time of acquisition
includes the following IFRS figures (IFRS amounts directly prior to the busi-
ness combination): intangible assets of €271.Bm {35.2m}, investments of
€644.1m (644.1m}, a ceded share of technical provisions of €89.5m {89.5m),
receivables of €104.5m {104.5m}, cash at banks, cheques and cash in hand of
€131.1m {131.1m), deferred acquisition costs of €74.4m (74.4m), other assets of
€64.9m {64.9m), subordinated liabilities of €£15.4m (15.4m)}, gross technical
provisions of €466.5m (466.5m), other provisions and liabilities of €176.5m
(176.5m), and deferred taxes of €111.5m {26.8m).

In connection with the acquisition of Midland, goodwill of €253.1m and other
intangible assets of €230.6m have been recognised. The goodwill is based
mainly on the exploitation of additional future business potential and the use
of the sales and insurance know-how and the capital strength of the Munich
Re Group. In addition, we expect cost savings from economies of scale.

On 1 April 2008, through its subsidiary Munich-American Holding Corpor-
ation, Wilmington, the Munich Re Group acquired 100% of the share capital of
Sterling Life Insurance Company (Sterling) and Olympic Health Management
Systems, Inc. {Olympic) — both based in Bellingham, Washington State - at a
total price of €229.6m. The purchase price includes all the incidental acquisi-
tion expenses and other charges, such as fees for consulting services and
taxes incurred.

Sterling is a leading provider of health insurance benefits for seniors in the
USA. The additionally acquired service company Olympic offers administra-
tive and management services for insurers. Olympic’s operations currently
focus on managing Sterling’s business operations.

The closing balances of Sterling and Olympic were not yet available when
these quarterly financial statements were prepared, so the disclosures for the
figures recognised at the time of acquisition and their IFRS carrying amounts
determined directly prior to the business combination are provisional.

The combined opening balance sheet of Sterling and Olympic at the time of
acquisition, after elimination of their reciprocal business, includes the follow-
ing provisional IFRS figures (IFRS amounts directly prior to the business com-
bination): intangible assets of €74.4m (0.6m), investments of €95.9m (95.9m),
a ceded share of technical provisions of €2.3m (2.3m), cash at banks, cheques
and cash in hand of €32.4m (92.4m), receivables, deferred tax assets and other
assets of €25.0m (25.0m), gross technical provisions of €74.1m (74.1m), other
provisions and liabilities of €24.7m (24.7m), and deferred taxes of €25.8m (-).

In connection with the acquisition of the two companies, goodwill of €64.2m
and other intangible assets of €73.8m have been recognised. The goodwill is
based mainly on the exploitation of additional future business potentia! and
the use of the sales, marketing and insurance know-how of the Munich Re
Group.
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Foreign currency translation

Cumeancy translation rate

On 30 April 2008, through its subsidiary Munich Re Holding Company (UK)
Ltd., the Munich Re Group acquired 100% of the shares in the holding comn-
pany The Roanoke Companies, Inc. {TRC), Schaumburg/Chicago (lllinois) at a
price of €33.8m. The purchase price includes a two-year earn-out agreement
with the seller, estimated at €4.5m, as well as incidental acquisition expenses,
other costs such as consulting services and taxes incurred. TRC owns Roanoke
Trade Services, Inc. and Roanoke Real Estate Holdings, Inc. The TRC Group
operates as a major marine insurance underwriting agency and brokerin the
USA {licensed in 50 states).

The TRC Group’s opening balance sheet at the time of acquisition included the
following figures: intangible assets of €3.0m, other assets of €18.7m, and
other liabilities of €13.2m. The figures were taken from TRC's interim balance
sheet as at 31 March 2008 and are therefore provisional. For reasons of ma-
teriality, no IFRS financial statements were prepared. The calculation of the
disclosures stipulated under IFRS 3.67{f) was impracticahle, requiring an
unreasonable amount of extra work.

In connection with the acquisition of the shareholding in TRC, other intangible
assets of €38.7m and deferred tax liabilities of €13.4m have been recognised.

Munich Re's presentation currency is the euro (€). The following table shows
the exchange rates of the most important currencies for our business:

Balance sheet Income statement

Rate for €1 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 Q12008 Q12007
Australian dollar 1.7358% 1.66515 1.65661 1.66693
Canadian dollar 1.62585 1.44300 150544 1.53558
Pound steding 0.79725 0.73445 0.75742 0.67059
Fand 12.87690 9,99215 1130410 9.43893
Swiss franc 1.56725 1.65525 1.60073 1.61619
1S dollar 1.58455 1.46205 1.49863 1.31062
Yen 157.7180 163.3330 157.7030 156.4280

Notes to the consolidated
balance sheet

{)ther securities — Available for sale

The main items of the consolidated balance sheet are made up as follows:

Intangible aysata

€m 31.3.2008 31.12.2007

I. Goodwill 3,083 3,135

1l. Other intangible assets 1,078 1,142
Thereof:

Software 303 348

Purchased insurance portfolios 521 537

Qther 254 257

Carrying amounts Unrealised Amortised cost
gainsflogsas

€m 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007 31.3.2008 31.12.2007

-I:ixad-interesl securities 91,432 94,585 669 =3 90,763 94,588
Idon-fixed-interest securities

Shares 17734 22,01 3.856 6,308 13,878 15,763

investment funds 1,673 1,768 187 305 1,386 1,463

Others 622 610 57 70 565 540

' 19,929 24,449 4,100 6,683 15,829 17,766

‘Total e [ 3,769 106,592 112,354
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Numbers of sheres in circulation and number of own shares held

Number of shares 31.3.2008 31.12.2007
Number of shares in circulation 204,419,711 207824,0M
Number of own shares held 13,468,959 10,064,599

Total FRERALEETLN 217858670

The number of own shares held contains 11,484,866 shares acquired in the
share buy-back programme decided on by the Board of Management on
4 May 2007. These shares were retired on 9 April 2008.

Minority interests

€m 31.3.2008 31.12.2007
Unrealised gains and losses 18 28
Consclidated result 10 77
Other equity 484 396
Total 501

These are mainly minority interests in the ERGO Insurance Group.

Subordinated liabilities

€m 31,3.2008 31.12.2007

Munich Reinsurance Company, Munich, §.75%, €3.000m,
Bonds 2003/2023
S&P rating: A 2,980 2,980
Munich Reinsurance Company, Munich, 7.625%, £300m,
.. Bonds 2003/2028
’f:'ﬁ_’iF rating: A 373 405
Munich Reinsurance Company, Munich,
unitil 2017 5.767%, thereafter variable, €1,500m,
Bonds 2007/perpetual
S&P rating: A 1,530 1,492
Total

Bonds and notes issued

€m 31.3.2008 31.12.2007

Munich Re America Corporation, Princeton, 7.45%,
IJS$ 500m, Senior notes 1996/2026
S&P rating: A- 315 341

Notes to the colisolidated  Tht. miain items ¢f..te consolidz?. . income siat:munt are made up as follows:

income statement
Premiums
Reingurance Primary insurance Total
Lite and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty

em' Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007
Gross premiums written 1,483 1,607 3,554 3,660 2,856 2,854 1,851 1,899 9,844 10,020
Change in uneamed premiums
Gross 14 23 3 183 67 66 579 605 974 877
Gross eamed pramiums 1,469 1,584 3240 3.477 2,789 2,788 1372 1,294 8,870 9,143
Ceded premiums written 73 45 190 91 33 36 10 136 4086 308
Change in uneamed premiums
Ceded share - -1 34 -83 - - 49 43 82 -41
Eamned premiums
Ceded 73 45 156 174 33 38 81 23 323 349
Net eamed premiums 1,398 1,538 3,084 3.303 2,756 2,752 .31 1,201 8,547 8,794

* After elimination of intra-Group transactions across sagments.
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Inv 2stment result by type of investment and segment

Reinsurance Prirmary insurance Asset Total
management
Life and Property- Lite and Property-
N ety health casualty health casualty
- ahemieT

7 €m' Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007

Q12008 Q12007

Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007

Q12008 Q12007

L_and and buildings, including

bu Idings on third-party land -3 45 - 198 20 3 2 2 t - 9 586
i'r:eslmems in
aff liated companies - - - - -2 -2 - ] - - -2 =1
m;estmen!s in associates 1 1 27 7 -3 3 4 1 18 9 47 21
Loans 1 1 2 3 332 309 18 14 -1 - 402 327
a'ler secutities held to maturity - - - - 2 3 - - - - 2 ]
aher securities available for sale
Fis ed-interest 252 154 463 287 523 485 &5 48 1 1 1,304 975
N n-fixed-interest —164 89  -725 410 -554 688 44 108 - - 1,339 1,295
Other securities held for trading
Firied-interest : - - 10 2 1 = 5 5 - - 16 8
E-n-fixed-interest - - - - - - - - - - - -
Derivatives 189 -4 855 -17 451 -83 13 -2 - - 1,618 -106
E-pusits retained
or assumed reinsurance,
and other investments 47 105 15 15 -1 -6 9 2 2 10 72 126
G.ﬁestments for the benefit
of life insurance policyholders
w10 bear the investment risk - - - - -193 15 - - - - =193 15
Er penses for the management
of investments, other expenses 7 7 kil 28 46 45 6 6 -1 - 89 86
Tetal s liER o HEd IS 192 N o0 R
1 fter elimination of intra-Group traasactions across segments.
Investment income by segrgent |
- Asset
Reinsurance Primary insurance management Total
- Life and Property- Life and Property-
health casualty health casualty
€m' (112008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007
Eagular income 73 293 375 443 1,003 970 96 99 23 22 1,770 1,827
It come from wiite-ups 130 14 561 66 454 15 4 1 - - 1,159 96
Gains on the dispus‘a"ﬁ\.“ K
of investments 187 157 918 708 339 1,058 148 116 - - 1,682 2,038
Cther income - - - - 6 23 - - - - 6 23
Tota T ool Ty 12w 2,066 2y 398
! After alimination of intra-Group tré nsactions across segments,
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Investment expenses by segmant

Assat
Reinsurance Primary insurance management Total
Life and Property- Life and Proparty-
haalth casualty health casualty
€m' Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007
Write-downs of investments 168 26 791 17 634 190 57 8 1 1 1,652 342
Losses on the disposal
of investments 95 44 41 184 314 1t 30 9 - - 850 348
Management expenses, interest
charges and other expenses 10 9 47 39 274 78 7 7 - 1 338 134
Total " 218 79 wiEy B > 2 824
' After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
Expenses for claims and benefits
Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
Life and hsalth Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
€m' Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q120072 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007
Gross '
Claims and benefits paid 959 1,066 2,194 2,218 2,485 2,651 762 751 8,400 6,686
Change in technical provisions
Provision for future policy benefits 132 61 21 10 387 776 9 10 555 857
Provision for outstanding claims =17 80 227 448 -65 =312 -12 65 133 281
Provision for premium refunds - - 2 -2 -3 749 4 5 -28 752
Other technical result n 1 5 64 3 4 32 Il

Gross expenses for claims
and benefits

Cedead share

Claims and benefits paid 42 151 475 457 21 22 33 73 571 703
Change in technical provisions

Provision for future

policy bansfits -22 -3 - - 15 28 - - -7 2%
Provigion for outstanding claims -2 -108 ~362 ~-333 - - -16 -39 -380 -480
Provision for premium refunds - - - - - - - - - -
Other tachnical resuit -3 -4 -6 -3 -17 -15 - - -26 -22

Expenses for claims and benefits -
Ceded share

Net

Claims and benafits paid 917 915 1,19 1,761 2,464 2,629 729 678 5,829 5,983
Change in technicnl provisions

Provision for future

policy benefits 1681 64 21 10 372 748 9 10 563 832
Provision for outstanding claims -15 188 589 781 -65 -312 4 104 513 761
Provision for premium refunds - - 2 -2 -34 749 q 5 -28 752
Other technical result 3

Neat expenses for claims
and benefits

40 Munich Re Group Quarterly Report 1/2008

At S e
2,342 2,555 PRV

1 After slimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
1 Adjusted pursuant to 1AS B,



Cpurating sxpenses

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
Life and health Praperty-casualty l.ife and health Property-casualty
€ém' (12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007 Q12008 Q12007
Actjisition costs -12 14 -22 -43 mn 305 258 2N 556 547
Management expenses 58 53 170 181 104 110 177 170 509 514
Aur ortisation of acquired
insurance portfofios 1 -1 - - 5 5 - - 6 4
Reinsurance commission
anil profit commission 309 366 768 757 3 5 8 2 1,088 1,130
Gmss operating expenses -.- 356 432 2916 .. 895 443 . 425 . 444 443 2,159 2,195
Celed sham of acquisition costs - 5} s 2 = 19 -1 -1 -2 - 3 20
Commission recgived
on ceded business 16 -1 26 53 5 5 1 1 48 58
Operating axpenses -
Cezed share 22 1 26 72 4 4 -1 1 51 78
Net operating expenses 334 431 890 823 439 421 445 442 2,108 2,17

! After elimination of intra-Group trarsactions across segments.

Non-current assets and disposal
%' groups held for sale

a7

rr

R

LS

The main changes in premiums in the consolidated balance sheet and the
consolidated income statement in relation to the comparative figures shown,
as well as their development in the period under review, are explained in more
detail in the management report on page 4.

The property portfolio of HGE Haus- und Grundbesitzgese!lschaﬂ Elsterwerda
mbH was cl&ssnfled in did gosal groups in thasecond quarter of 2007; the carry-
ing ameint of this property remains unchanged at the reporting date. We are
currently proceeding on the assumption that the sales contract will be con-
cluded in the second quarter of 2008.

In the case of the hotels with a book value of €55m first classified in disposal
groups as “held for sale” in the third quarter of 2007, we continue to expect
ownership to be transferred in the first half of 2008. Subsequent valuation of
these assets at the reporting date did not give rise to any recognised income
or expense.,, e RITEIE
In addmoﬁrbart ofthei estment property firdt classified as “held for sale” in
- the first quarter of 2007 is still recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at
the reporting date with a carrying amount of €6m. Here, too, we expect owner-
ship to be transferred in the first half of 2008. Subsequent valuation of these
assets at the reporting date did not give rise to any recognised income or
expense either.

Besides this, we decided in the fourth quarter of 2007 to sell our stake in MPE
Hotel | .£.:C;; New York. Bukisequent valuatmn' of this disposal group at the
repomng date gave rise fo a write-down of €3m,(our share of loss). We still
expect to sell the shareholdlng in the financial year 2008.

Ownership of the minority holding in the US company Health Dialog Corpor-
ation classified as “held for sale” in the fourth quarter of 2007 was transferred
in the first quarter of 2008. This shareholding, with a carrying amount of €34m,
is therefore no longer recognised at the reporting date.

At the beginning of the first quarter of 2008, the Munich Re Group decided to
sell a portfolio of six items of foreign investment property (land and buildings)
from an iii-investments special fund. The assets concerned, and the share of
the provision for deferred premium refunds and the deferred taxes apportion-
able to them, have been classified in disposal groups as “held for sale” Sub-
sequent valuation of this disposal group at the reporting date gave rise to an
impairment of €19m. The property is recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet with a carrying amount of €49m at the reporting date. Ownership of the
iterns was transferred in April 2008.
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Related parties

Number of staff

Contingent liabilities,
other financial commitments

Eamings per share

Events after the balance sheet date

Transactions between Munich Re and subsidiaries that are to be deemed
related parties have been eliminated in consolidation and are not disclosed
in the notes. Business relations with unconsolidated subsidiaries are of sub-
ordinate importance as a whole; this also applies to business relations with
associates.

There were no notifiable transactions between Board members and the
Munich Re Group.

The number of staff employed by the Group as at 31 March 2008 totalled
25,620 (25,565) in Germany and 13,659 (13,069) in other countries.

Number of staff

31.3.2008 31.12.2007
Reinsurance companies 7.387 7372
Primary insurance companies 31,082 30,460
Asset management 810 802

Total

In comparison with the situation at 31 December 2007, financial commitments
of significance for the assessment of the Group's financial position show two
main changes: an increase of €75m in investment commitments and an in-
crease of €165m in other financial commitments. No contingent liabilities
have been entered into for the benefit of Board members.

The earnings per share figure is calculated by dividing the consolidated result
for the reporting period by the weighted average number of shares.

Eemings per share

Q1 2008 Q1 2007
Consolidated result attributable to
Munich Re equity holders €m 775 958
Weighted average number of shares 204,688,259 221,670,847
Eamings per share € 3.79 4,32

! Adjusted pursuant to 1AS 8.

The put options sold by Munich Reinsurance Company only have an insignifi-
cant diluting effect on earnings per share.

On 2 May 2008, with a view to developing business in the Indian life insurance
market, ERGO agreed with the Delhi-based HERO Group to set up a joint ven-
ture, HERQO ERGO Life Insurance Company Ltd. based in Mumbai, in which
ERGO will have a 26% stake. HERO ERGO Life Insurance Company is aiming to
write life primary insurance policies in India as from 2003. ERGOQ is paying
around €20m for its share.

The business combinations effected after the balance sheet date are described
in the section “Changes in the consoidated group”
Drawn up in Munich, 5 May 2008

The Board of Management
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Review report

To Miinchener Rickversicherungs-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft in
Miinchen

We have reviewed the condensed interim consolidated financial statements ~
comprising the balance sheet, the income statement, the condensed cash
flow statement, the condensed statement of changes in equity as well as

the selected explanatory notes — and the interim management report of
Miinchener Riickversicherungs-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft in Minchen,
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 March 2008, which are parts of the
quarterly financial report in accordance with Section 37x para. 3 of the WpHG
{German Securities Trading Act}. The preparation of the condensed interim
consalidated financial statements in accordance with [FRS for Interim Finan-
cial Reporting, as adopted by the EU, and of the interim management report,
which has been prepared according to the applicable regulations for interim
management reports of the WpHG, are the responsibility of the Company’s
management.

Our responsibility is to issue a report on these condensed interim consoli-
dated financial statements and the interim management report based on our
review.

We have performed our review of the condensed interim consolidated finan-
cial staterents and the interim management report in accordance with the
German generally accepted standards for the review of financial statements
promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer {IDW). Those standards
require that we plan and conduct the review so that we can, through critical
evaluation, preclude, with a certain leve! of assurance, that the interim consol-
idated financial statements have not been prepared, in material aspects, in
accordance with IFRS for Interim Financial Reporting, as adopted by the EU,
and that the interim management report has not been prepared according to
the applicable regulations of the WpHG. A review is limited primarily to inquir-
ies of company employees and analytical assessments and therefore does not
provide the assurance attainable in a financial statement audit. Since, in
accordance with our engagement, we have not performed a financial state-
ment audit, we cannot issue an auditor’s report.

Based on our review, no matters have come to our attention that cause us to
presume that the condensed interim consolidated financial statements have
not been prepared in all material respects in accordance with IFRS for Interim
Financial Reporting, as adopted by the EU, and that the interim management
report has not been prepared according to the applicable regulations for
interim management reports of the WpHG.

Munich, 8 May 2008
KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Klaus Becker Martin Berger
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftsprofer
{Certified public accountant} (Certified public accountant}
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Important dates 2008/2009

20c8 2009
6 Aigust 2008 Interim report as at 30 June 2008 26 February 2009  Balance sheet press conference for 2008
6 August 2008 Half-year press conference financial statements {preliminary figures)

ﬂ\lovember 2008 Interim report as at 30 September 2008

© May 2008

Miinchener Riickversicherungs-Gesellschaft
Kdoniginstrasse 107

80802 Miinchen

Gerriany

wwyLmunichre.com

Responsible for content
GroL p Accounting

Editorial deadline: 5 May 2008

Printed by

Druexerei Fritz Kriechbaumer
Wettzarsteinstr. 12

8202 4 Taufkirchen

Germany

22 April 2009 Annual General Meeting

23 April 2009 Dividend payment

6 May 2009 Interim report as at 31 March 2009
4 August 2009 Interim report as at 30 June 2009
4 August 2009 Half-year press conference

5 Novermnber 2009 interim report as at 30 September 2009

The official German original of this report is also
available from the Cormnpany. In addition, you can find
our annual reports and interim reports, along with
further information about Munich Re, on the internet at
www.munichre.com.

Service for investors and analysts

If you have general questions on Munich Re shares, please
use our shareholder hotline:

Tel.: (01802)226210

{Note for callers from Germany: 6 cents per call from a
German fixed network, with varying prices from German
maobile phone networks}

E-mail: shareholder@munichre.com

If you are an institutional investor or analyst, please contact
our investor relations team:

Sascha Biben

Tel.: +49{89)3891-3500

Fax: +49(89)3891-9888

E-mail: investorrelations @ munichre.com

Service for media

Journalists receive information from our Press Division:
Dr. jur. Christian Lawrence

Tel.: +49(89)3891-5400

Fax: +49(89)3891-3598

E-mail: presse@munichre.com
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Niinchener Riickversicherungs-Gesellschaft Aktlengesellschaft in Miinchen

— ISIN DE0008430026 (WKN 843 002) —

Dividend Notice

The Annual General Meeting of Minchener Ruckversicherungs-Gesellschaft on 17 April 2008 voted for a
divide 1d of €5.50 per share to be paid on each share entitled to dividend.

Paymiznt of the dividend, which will be subject to deduction of 20% German withholding tax and 5.5%
solida‘ity surcharge on the tax withheld (a total of 21.1%}), will be made as from 18 April 2008 as follows:

— For registered shares held in joint custody in the Garman giro transfer system, the dividend will be paid
via Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main, to the sharenolders' banks which will credit the relevant -
amoulits to the shareholders' accourits.

— aymant for shares stiil held in certificated form wnl be made agamst submission of Dividend Coupon
Ne. 11 tc the foliowing paying agent: :

day xische Hvno- und Versinsbank AG
with all of its branches

Shareholders subjzct to taxation in Germanv can ofiset the tax wuthheld against assessed tax in their
ussessment for German incare tax or corporation tax. The sclidarity surcharge withheld can be offset
against the assessed solidar! ity surchargz. Mo impuitation tax credit is invoived in the dividend payment.

Withholding tax and sc.idarity surch_arge wili. not be withheld in the case of sharehoiders liable to German
tzxation: who have given their bggX a "iWichiveranlagungsbescheinigung" (certificate from the Geiman tax
authoities that they are not .,ucjec,t to an ~:ssessmerit procedure;. The same applies to such shareholders
who have submitted a "Freiste. IungsauﬂP 3’ with suﬁrlment examptiot volume (German application for
exermition from withhelding tax). ey . .

For sharehoiders subject to tax assessment in Germany, the dividend will be taxable in accordance with the
provisions of German corporation and income tax law (half-incorne meathod).

For foreign shareholcers, the withholding tax and the solidarity surcharge withheld may be reduced pursuant
to the existing agreements for the avoidance of doubie taxation between the Federal Republic of Germany
and the respective foreign country. The application for a refund of withholding tax must be submitted to the
Bundeszentralamt fir Steuern, 53225 Bonn, Germany, no iater than 31 December 2012,

Munich, April 2003

The Eoard of Management

>> Bzck to AGM overview

http:/'www.munichre.com/en/ir/agm/2008/dividend_notice.aspx 13.06.2008
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Here is a list and brief summary of the Notifications relating held to date
Dates Notification relating

21 Mity  Release of an announcement according to Section 21 WpHG
2008 [German Securities Trading Act]

WKN 843002
ISIN DECO08430026

UBS AG, Zurich, Switzerland, informed us in accordance with Section 21, para. 1 of the German

Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in our company had fallen
below the threshold of 3% on 13 May 2008 and totalled 1.44% (2,973,925 voting rights). Of

these, 0.15% (305,662 voting rights) are attributable to UBS AG in accordance with Section 22,

para. 1, sentence 1, item 1 of the WpHG.
Munich, 21 May 2008

The Board of Management

5 May Release of an announcement according to Section 21 WpHG
2008 [German Securities Trading Act]

VKN 843002
ISIN DEO008430026

UBS AG, Zurich, Switzerland, informed us in accordance with Section 21, para. 1 of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in our company had exceeded

the threshold of 3% on 25 April 2008 and totalled 3.90% (8,047,572 voting rights). Of these,

0.11% (222,104 voting rights) are attributable to UBS AG in accordance with Section 22, para. 1,

sentence 1, item 1 of the WpHG.
Munich, 5 May 2008

The Board of Management
2 May Release of an announcement according to Section 21 WpHG
2008 [German Securities Trading Act]

WKN 843002
ISIN DEQ008430026

UBS AG, Zurich, Switzerland, informed us in accordance with Section 21, para. 1 of the German

Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in our company had fallen
below the threshold of 3% on 15 April 2008 and totalled 2.60% (5,360,448 voting rights). Of

these, 0.10% (213,076 voting rights) are attributable to UBS AG in accordance with Section 22,

para. 1, sentence 1, item 1 of the WpHG.
Munich, 2 May 2008

The Board of Management

22 April Release of an announcement according to Section 21 WpHG
2008 [German Securities Trading Act]

WKN 843002

http:/rwww.munichre.com/en/ir/publications/notifications/default.aspx 13.06.2008



ISIN DEQ0084300126

UBS AG, Zurich, Switzerland, informed us on 18 April 2008 in accordance with Section 21,
para. 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in our
company had exceeded the threshold of 3% on 14 April 2008 and totalled 4.25%

(8,762,090 voting rights). Of these, 0.14% (286,325 voting rights) are attributable to UBS AG in
accordance with Section 22, para. 1, sentence 1, item 1 of the WpHG.

Munich, 22 April 2008

The Board of Management

10 April Release of an announcement according to Section 21 WpHG
2008 [German Securities Trading Act]

WKN 843002
ISIN DEQ008430026

On 8 April 2008, Barclays Global Investors UK Holdings Limited, London, England, informed us
in accordance with Section 21, para. 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its
share of the voting rights in our company had exceeded the threshold of 3% on 2 April 2008 and
totalled 3.01% (this corresponds to 6,551,174 voting rights).

Barclays Global Investors UK Holdings Limited was attributed these 3.01% of the voting rights in
our company pursuant to Section 22, para. 1 sent. 1 item 6 WpHG in connection with
Section 22, para. 1 sent. 2 WpHG.

Munich, 10 Aprit 2008

The Board of Management

10 April Release of a Voting rights announcement according to
2008 Section 26 para. 1 sentence 2 WpHG [German Securities Trading Act] (Own shares)

WKN 843002
ISIN DE0008430026

On 9 April 2008, Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft in
Muenchen, Munich, Germany, had fallen below the threshold of 5% in own shares and as of this
date held 0.7541% (this corresponds to 1,556,582 shares). Of these shares, 0.7540% (this
corresponds to 1,556,358 shares) are held through a person acting in his own name but on
behalf of Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft in Muenchen.

Munich, 10 April 2008

The Board of Management

3 Maich Release of an announcement according to Section 21 WpHG
2008 [German Securities Trading Act]

WKN 843002
ISIN DE0008430026

On 29 February 2008, Allianz SE, Munich, Germany, informed us in accordance with Section 21,
para. 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in our
company had fallen below the threshold of 3% on 27 February 2008 and totalled 1.9087% on
that date (this corresponds to 4,158,742 voting rights). 1.9041% of these voting rights (this
corresponds to 4,148,727 voting rights) are attributable to Allianz SE in accordance with

Section 22, para. 1, sentence 1, item 1 of the WpHG and 0.0046% (this corresponds to 10,015
voting rights) are attributable to Allianz SE in accordance with Section 22, para. 1, sentence 1,
item 6 of the WpHG.

http://www.munichre.com/er/ir/publications/notifications/default.aspx 13.06.2008



Miinchener Riickversicherungs-Gesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft in Miinchen

WKN 843002

ISIN DE0008430026

Announcement pursuant to Section 30b para. 1 sentence 1 item 2 of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) regarding the retirement of shares

The Annual General Meeting of Minchener Rickversicherungs-Gesellschaft on 26
April 2007 authorised the Board of Management pursuant to Section 71 para.1 item
8 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) to retire the shares repurchased
without requiring further approval from the Annual General Meeting. The
authorisation includes retirement of the shares in a simplified process without
reducing the share capital by increasing the proportion of the remaining shares in the
share capital.

On 9 April 2008, the Board of Management of Miinchener Rickversicherungs-
Gesellschaft made use of this authorisation and resolved to retire 11,484,866 own
shares in a simplified process, without reducing the share capital but by adjusting the
proportion of the Company's share capital represented by each of the remaining no-
par-value shares pursuant to Section 71 para. 1 item 8 sentence 6 of the Geman
Stock Corporation Act (AktG) in connection with Section 237 para. 3 item 3 of the
German Stock Corpcration Act (AktG). The 11,484,866 own shares are thereby
retired.

The share capital of the Company remains unchanged at 587,725,396.48 euros. It
now consists of 206,403,804 no-par-value shares.

The Board of Management

Munich, April 2008
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Articles of Association 05/2008

Section |

Article 1

Article 2

General conditions

(1) The Company has been registered under the
name of

“Minchener Rickversicherungs-Gesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft in Miinchen”

(Munich Reinsurance Company

Joint-Stock Company in Munich).

{2} Its seat is in Munich.

{3) The object of the Company is the provision
of reinsurance in all classes of business.

The Company may establish branches in
Germany or other countries, may form, acquire
or participate in companies of all types, may
manage companies or restrict itself to managing
the participations. It is entitled to carry out all
transactions and measures that appear suited
to serving the object of the Company.

{1} Announcements by the Company shall be
published in the electronic Bundesanzeiger
{German Federal Gazette). If under legal
requirements it is necessary for the Company
to publish announcements in an information
medium other than the electronic Bundesan-
zeiger (German Federal Gazette), this informa-
tion medium shall be used instead of the
electronic Bundesanzeiger (Germany Federal
Gazette).

{2) The Company shall be entitled to submit
to registered shareholders, subject to their
approval, information by way of remote data
transmission.
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Section Il Share capital and shares

Article 3 {1} The share capital of the Company amounts
to 587,725,396.48 euros. It is divided into
206,403,804 no-par-value shares.

{2} The shares are registered shares. Transfer to
a new acquirer may be effected only with the
approval and at the discretion of the Company.
The Company shall not be obliged to state rea-
sons for declining the transfer. The Company’s
approval is not required for the transfer of
shares converted from bearer shares into un-
restrictedly transferabie registered shares by
resolution of the General Meeting on 22 July 1999,

{3} In the event of an increase in share capital,
the date on which the new shares become
entitled to dividend may differ from the date
of the capital contribution.

Article 4 {1} The Board of Management shall be author-
ised, with the consent of the Supervisory Board,
to increase the Company’s share capital at any
time up to 25 May 2009 in one or more stages by
an amount of up to 280 million euros by issuing
new registered no-par-value shares against cash
or non-cash contribution {Authorised Capital
Increase 2004).

In the case of capital increases against ¢ash con-
tribution, shareholders shalt be granted a sub-
scription right. However, the Board of Manage-
ment shall be entitled, with the consent of the
Supervisory Board, to exclude fractional amounts
from such subscription rights and insofar as this
is necessary to grant the bearers of warrants or
convertible bonds or bonds with warrants,
issued by the Company or by one of its depend-
ent Group companies, pre-emptive rights to the
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extent to which they would be entitled as share-
holders after exercising their warrants or after
the conversion requirements from such bonds
have been satisfied. The Board of Management
shall also be entitled, with the consent of the
Supervisory Board, to exclude subscription
rights if the issue price of the new shares is not
significantly lower than the stock market price
and the shares issued with exclusion of the
shareholders’ subscription rights pursuant to
Section 186 para. 3 sentence 4 of the German
Stock Companies Act do not exceed a total of
10% of the share capital either at the time this
authorisation becomes effective or at the time it
is exercised. This maximum [imit shall include
shares sold or issued, or to be issued, during
the term of this authorisation on the basis of
other authorisations with exclusion of subscrip-
tion rights, directly or indirectly pursuant to
Article 186 para. 3 sentence 4 of the German
Stock Companies Act.

In addition, the Board of Management shail be
authorised, with the consent of the Supervisory
Board, to exclude the shareholders’ subscrip-
tion rights in the case of capital increases
against non-cash contribution.

The Board of Management shall alsc be author-
ised, with the consent of the Supervisory Board,
to determine all other rights of the shares and
the terms of issue.

{2) The Board of Management shall be author-
ised, with the consent of the Supervisory
Board, to increase the Company’s share capital
at any time up to 18 April 2011 by an amount
of up to 5 millien euros by issuing new regis-
tered no-par-value shares against cash contri-
bution {Authorised Capital Increase 2006). The
authorisation may be exercised in part amounts.
The subscription right of shareholders shail be
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excluded to allow the shares to be issued to
employees of the Company and its affiliated
companies.

The Board of Management shall also be author-
ised, with the consent of the Supervisory Board,
to determine all other rights of the shares and
the terms of issue.

{(3) A contingent increase in the share capital by
an amount of 35 million euros, consisting of
registered shares, has been authorised. This
increase in the share capital shall be carried out
only to the extent that bearers of warrants at-
tached to shares issued from capital authorised
for this purpose, on the basis of the authorisa-
tion granted to the Board of Management on

11 June 2003, exercise these warrants. The new
shares shall be entitled to dividend from the
beginning of the business year in which they
come into being through the exercise of war-
rants. The Board of Management shall be
authorised to decide on the further details of
the contingent capital increase {Contingent
Capital Increase 2003 1),

{(4) A contingent increase in the share capital by
a further amount of up to 100 million euros,
consisting of registered no-par-value shares
entitled to dividend from the beginning of the
business year in which they are issued, has
been authorised. This contingent capital
increase is for granting shares to the holders or
creditors of convertible bonds or bonds with
warrants issued by the Company or by a
dependent Group company up to 27 April 2010
under the authorisation of the Annual General
Meeting of 28 April 2005, insofar as the issue is
against cash payment. The increase in the
share capital shall be carried out only to the
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Article 4a

Article 5

extent that warrants or conversion rights from
the bonds are exercised or conversion require-
ments from such bonds are satisfied. The
Board of Management shall be authorised to
decide on the further details of the contingent
capital increase {Contingent Capital Increase
2005).

{5) Article 3 para. 3 applies here accordingly.

Every shareholder may request to have his or
her unrestrictedly transferable registered shares
converted into restrictedly transferable regis-
tered shares, The Company may limit the exer-
cise of this right to individual periods within the
business year by means of appropriate notifica-
tion. The costs of conversion shall be borne by
the Company.

(1) The right of shareholders to have share cer-
tificates issued for their shares is excluded. The
Company may issue certificates for individual
shares (single share certificates) or for more
than one share {(multiple share certificates). The
form of share certificates and of dividend and
renewal coupons shall be determined by the
Board of Management.

{2) Coupons and renewal certificates (talons)
shall be made out to the bearer.
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Section Ill

Article 6

Constitution

General Meeting

{1) The Annual General Meeting shall be held
at the registered seat of the Company, at a
venue within a radius of 50 km of said seat or
in another German city with a population of
more than 100,000 inhabitants, the choice of
venue being at the discretion of the Board

of Management.

(2) Every shareholder may attend the General
Meeting in person or be represented by a proxy
provided that he or she

1. has given notice of his ar her intention to
participate to the Board of Management of
the Company not later than the last day
of the legal notification period, unless the
Board of Management has stipulated a later
closing date for notification, and

2. is entered in the Company's register of
shareholders for the submitted shares.

The closing date for notifying the Company of
the intention to participate shall be announced
when the invitation to the General Meeting is
published in the Company's publications. In the
invitation to the General Meeting the sharehold-
ers may also be required to furnish a list of their
share numbers. If the last day of the period for
giving notice of intention to participate falls on
a Sunday, on a recognised public holiday at the
seat of the Company or on a Saturday, the
preceding working day shall apply instead.
Saturday shall not be deemed a working day
within the meaning of this provision.

{3) Each shareholder who has fulfilled the
conditions of para. 2 shall receive an
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Article 7

Article 8

admission card, which must be brought to the
General Meeting.

Voting rights may be exercised by proxy. The
proxy may be given in writing, by fax, etectron-
ically, or in another form, details of which shall
be specified by the Company in each case. The
individual information necessary for granting
these proxies shall be sent together with the
invitation to the General Meeting.

{1) The Chair at the General Meeting shall be
taken by the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board. In the event that he is unable to attend
or is unwilling to chair the Meeting, the Chair
shall be taken by another member of the Super-
visory Board duly determined by the Chairman
of the Supervisory Board, or - in the absence of
such an appointment - by the member elected
by the members of the Supervisory Board of
shareholders in accordance with Section 27
para. 3 of the German Co-Determination Act. If
none of these persons are able to attend or are
willing to chair the Meeting, the Chair shall be
elected by those members of the Supervisory
Board of shareholders present.

(2} The Chairman of the Meeting shall be
responsible for conducting proceedings. He
shall determine the order of speakers. As
regards the right of shareholders to speak and
submit questions, he may also reasonably limit
the time shareholders have to do so; he may in
particular at the start or in the course of the
General Meeting reasonably set time limits on
the Meeting's proceedings, on the discussion
of items on the agenda or on individua! contri-
butions (questions or comments). When deter-
mining the time to be allocated to individual
contributions {questions or comments), the
Chairman of the Meeting may distinguish
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Article 9

Article 10

between first and repeated requests to address
the meeting and also according to other materiat
criteria.

The Chairman of the Meeting shall determine

voting procedure. He may determine an order
of items on the agenda which differs from that
given in the invitation to the Meeting.

{(3) If announced in the invitation to the General
Meeting, the Chairman of the Meeting may
permit audio-visual transmission of the General
Meeting in a form to be specified by him in
more detail.

One vote shall be attached to each share.

Supervisory Board

(1) The Supervisory Board shall consist of
20 members, 10 of whom shall be elected by
the shareholders and 10 by the employees.

{2) Their term of office shall end on the date of
the ordinary General Meeting which resolves
whether to approve the actions of the Supervis-
ory Board during the fourth business year after
the commencement of their term of office, not
counting the business year in which the term
commences. When electing members to repre-
sent the shareholders, the General Meeting may
decide that their term of office shall be shorter.

{3) The members and substitute members of
the Supervisory Board may resign from the
Board at any time by giving written notification
to the Board of Management.
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Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

Article 14

Article 15

Should a mamber of the Supervisory Board not
serve his or her full term of office and not be
replaced by a substitute member, a new mem-
ber shall be elected only for the remainder of
the term of office of such member.

The Supervisory Board shall elect a Chairman
and one or more Deputy Chairmen frem
amongst its members for the duration of their
term of office on the Supervisory Board.

Once the Chairman of the Supervisory Board has
been elected, a meeting of the Supervisory Board
shall be quorate if all its members have been
invited to the meeting or called upon to vote
and if 10 members including the Chairman or
alternatively 15 members participate in the vote.

The Supervisory Board shall be empowered to
make amendments to the Articles of Associ-
ation, provided that such amendments affect
only the formulation.

(1) Each member of the Supervisory Board
shall receive an annual remuneration of 50,000
euros. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board
shall be entitled to two-and-a-half times, and
the Deputy Chairman to one-and-a-half times,
this remuneration.

(2) In addition, each member of the Supervisory
Board shall receive

a) result-related annual remuneration. This
shall amount to 4,000 euros for each full euro
by which earnings per share exceed 12 euros in
the financial year for which the remuneration is
paid (“remuneration year”}, but to a maximum
of 40,000 euros,



Articles of Association 05/2008

b} result-related annual remuneration with
long-term incentivisation of 10,000 euros. This
shall be paid out if earnings per share in the
remuneration year exceed earnings per share
in the third financial year preceding the remu-
neration year by at least 30%.

The Chairman of the Superviscry Board shall
be entitled to two-and-a-half times, and the
Deputy Chairman to one-and-a-half times,
these amounts. The basis for calculating the
result-related remuneration shatl be the undi-
luted earnings per share from continuing oper-
ations, as shown in the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs}).

{3} Each member of a committee shall receive
an additional amount equivalent to 50%, and
the chairman of a committee an additional
amount equivalent to 100%, of the remunera-
tion provided for under para. 1 sentence 1. This
shall not apply to the chairman and members
of the Conference Committee set up in accord-
ance with Section 27 para. 3 of the German
Co-Determination Act and the Nomination
Committee.

(4} The members of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee shall receive an
attendance fee of 2,000 euros for each meeting
of the Committee they attend. For members of
the Audit Committee, this shall apply only if the
meeting of this committee does not take place
on the same day as a Supervisory Board meet-

ing.

{5) The total annual remuneration of members
of the Supervisory Board in accordance with
paras. 1to 4 shall be limited to three times the
amount payable under para. 1.
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C.

Article 16

Article 17

{6) The Company shall reimburse the members
of the Supervisory Board for their expenses
and for turnover taxes.

{7) Supervisory Board members who have only
served on the Supervisory Board or one of its
committees for part of the financial year or of
the three-year assessment period for remunera-
tion in accordance with para. 2b) shall be remu-
nerated on a pro rata basis. For the calculation
of long-term remuneration pursuant to para.
2b) membership on the Supervisory Board of at
least six months in the respective financial year
shall be deemed as membership during the full
financial year.

{8) These provisions shall apply for the first
time to the remuneration payable for the finan-
cial year 2009. The provisions relating to the
Nomination Committee shall apply for the first
time to the financial year 2008.

Board of Management

The Board of Management shall consist of at
least two persons; if there are to be more than
two, the Supervisory Board shall decide how
many members the Board of Management is
to have.

Any two members of the Board of Management,
or one member jointly with an employee vested
with full commercial power of attorney, shall be
entitled to represent the Company. The Super-
visory Board may, however, authorise any
individual member of the Board of Management
to represent the Company alone.
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Section IV

Article 18

Article 19

Article 20

Balance sheet, appropriation of profits

The business year shall be the calendar year.

When the Board of Management and the Super-
visory Board are adopting the annual accounts,
they may transfer more than half the profit for
the year to the other revenue reserves, up 1o an
amount equivalent to half the share capital.

The balance sheet profit shall be at the disposal
of the General Meeting, which shall determine
the dividend to be paid to the shareholders. The
General Meeting may decide that the distribu-
tion may be a dividend in kind instead of, or in
addition to, a cash dividend.
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